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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Third Annual General Meeling of the Shareholders of the company will be
held on Tuesday, the 29™ day of September, 2015 at 11.00 A M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 9™,
KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar to transact the following business-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance sheet as at March 31, 2015 and the Profit & Los:.

Account for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of Auditors' and Directors' thereon,

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Anurag Gupta, DIN 00192888 who retires by rotation and is eligible for

reappoiniment. : .

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
Companies Act, 2013, M/s Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh, lhe retiring auditors of the
Company, be and are hereby appointed as audilors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting required to be held for the financial
year 2019-2020, subject to ratification of their appointment at every Annual General Meeting by the members at
a remuneration to be mutually agreed.” : . : .

SPECIAL BUSINESS .
4. To consider and If thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s} the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148, 152 read with Schedulé [V and all other
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. T N
Goel, DIN 00193103, who qualifies for being appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and s hereby appointed as an Independent Directors af the company,
not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for 5 (five) consecutive years for a term up to 30.09.2020"

5. To conslder and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s) the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution: .

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other
provisions of tha Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr.
Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052, who qualifies for being appointed as an Independent Director and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Directors of the company,
not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for 5 (five) consecutive years for a term up to 30.09.2020"

a

For and on behalf of the Board
Place: Chandigarh : A |
Date: 05.09.2015 {Gopal Krishan Gupta )
Regd. Offica: . : Chairman Cum Managing Director
o™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar
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NOTES: . .
1. The Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Special
Business set out in ihe Notice is annexed,

2. A member entilled to attend and vole al the annual general mesting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of the company.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company shall remain ciosed from 25" day of September, 2015 to 29" day of September,
2015 (both days inclusive). ’ " -

4. The instrumaent of proxy, in ordar to be effective, should be deposited at the registered’ office of the company,
duly compleled and signed, nol less than 48 hours before the commencement of the mewating. Proxies submitted
on behalf of Limited Companies or societles etc. must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as
applicabla.

3. in case of joint hoiders attending the Meeting, the joint holder who Is higher in order of names under a given
Folio/DPID-Client (in respect of dematerialized shares) will be entitled to vote. '

6. Members/Proxies are requesied to bring thelr copy of this Notice along with duliy filled admission slip for
atlending the meslting. :

[}
7. Membars hokding shares in physical form are requestad to nolify change in address, if any, to the Company at
its Registered Office or to the Registrar 8 Transfer Agents-M/s Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-85, Bali Nagar,
New Defthl-110015.

8. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify change in their addreés. if any, to their
Depository Participant. .

9. Pursuant 1o provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed there under, the company may
serd notice of general meeting and other documents through electronic mode. Further, pursuant to the first
provisc to the Rule 18 of tha Companigs (Manageménl and Adminictration) Ruic, ‘2014, the Company shall
provide an advance opportunity atleast once in a financial year to the members to register their e-mail address
and changes therein. In view of the same, members are requested to kindly update their e-mail address with
depository participants in case of holding shares in demat form. If holding shares in physical form, Members are
requested to inform their e-mail D to the company. ¢

10. Electronic copy of the Notice of general meeting of the company is being sent té) all the members whose
email lds are registered with the company/Depository Particlpant(s) for communication purposes. For members
who have not reglistered their email address, physical copias are being sent by the permittad mode.

11. Pursuant to provislons of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014 and the provisiona of Listing Agreement with Stock,Exchenges, tha Company is-

pleased to offer e-voting facility to the members to cast their voies electronically on all resolutions aet forth in the
Notice convening Annual General Meeting to be held on Tuesday, the 29™ day of September, 2015 at 11.00
A.M. at the registered office of the company at 9", KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabre, Hisar,
The Company has engaged the services of COSL to provide the e-voting fadllity. - ‘ |

12. The Inastructions for members for E-Voling are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, the 28™ day of September, 2015 at 10.00 A.M. and ends on Monday,
the 28" day-of September, 2015 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareho’ ers’ of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (“ccord date) of Tuesday, the 22™ day of
September, 2015, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting modute shall be disabled by CDSL for- voting .
thereafter, . N :

(i} The sharghoiders should log on to the e-voting wabsite www.evolingindia.com.
{iii) Click on Shareholders. ' SR
(iv) Now Enter your Usar ID

L i.
.
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(a) For CDSL. 16 digits beneficiaiv 1D,

(b} For NSDL: 8 Character DP If: fellowed by 8 Digits Client ID, .

(¢) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
{v) Ne:xt enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Loyin. '
(vi) If you are holding share~ in demat fee and had Ingged on to vany svotingindia.com ang voled on an earlier
voting of any company, then your existi= " password is 10 be used. *
(vii) if you are a first time user ollow the tieps given delow:
for Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
{Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical sharsholders)
e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depoaitory
Participant are requasted to use the sequence number which is printed on
Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field.

DOoB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat accéunt or in the company
records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format. )

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the
company records for the said demat account or follo. -

e Please enfer the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login.- If the
details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank detalls field as mentloned in
instruction (iv). ’

(vili} After entering these detalls appropriately, click on “SUBMIT" tab.

{ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selaction screen. Howaver,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to
mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is (o be also
used by the demat holders for voting ‘for resolutions” of any*other-company on which'thayare eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform, It is strongly recommended not to share your
password with any other person and take utmost care 1o keep your password confidential.

{x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the delails can ba usad only for e-voling on the resolutions
contained in this Notice. ’ :

{xi} Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company, i'e. Hisar Spinning Mills Limited on which you chooSe to vole.
(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and agsinst the same the option “YES/NO®
for voling. Select the oplion YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assenl to the Resolution
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

{xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" il you wish o view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resclution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else lo change your vole, click on "CANCEL" and
accordingly modify your vote.

{xv) Once you “CONFIRM" your vole on the resolution, you will not he allowed to modify your vote.

{xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder ‘has forgottan the same password lhen Enter the User 1D and the imagn
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xviii) Note for Non — individual Shareholders and Cuslodians

-« Nen-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} and Custodian are required tc
log on to www.evetingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

« A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed tc
helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com.

« After receiving the login details a compliance user should be Created using the admin login anc'
password. The Compliance user would be able lo link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on,

3
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¢ The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com and on approval of the ~
accounts they would be able to cast their vote,
» A scanned copy of lhe Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they have issued in favour

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scn.nmizer to verify the
same.

{xix) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked
Questions (“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www., evobngindla com, under help section or write
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(xx) Since, the Company is required to provide the members facility to exercise their vote by electronic means,
shareholders of the company, holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized form as on the cut off date
i.e. Tuesday. the 22™ day of September, 2015 and not casting their vote electronically, may also cast their vote -
at the Annual General Meeting. . '

{xxi) The members who have cast their vote by e-voting prior to the Annual General meelmg. may also attend
the meeting but shall not be ebtitled to cast their vote again.

{(xxii) Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Company Secretary in practice, has been appo:ntad as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the e-voling process in a fair & transparent manner.’

{xxiii) The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual genaral meeting, first count
the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voling in the presence of
atleast 2 witnesses not in employment of the Company and make, nat later than 3 days from the canclusion of
the meeting, a Consolidated Scrutinizers report of the total votes cast in favour or agalnst if any, to the
Chairman, who shall countersugn the same. A

. a
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,

ITEM NO. 4

Mr. T N Goe! (DIN 00193103). is a Non Executive Independent Oirector in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the Bombay Stock Exchange and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in wriling
from a member under Section 160 of the. Compenies Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of en
independent Director of the Company. .

As per the provisions of section 149 of the Companies act, 2013, every listed company is required to have
atieast 1/3™ of the total number of directors as Independent Directors, hence the Board recommends tho
Ordinary Resolution for approval of the members.

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. T N Goel (DIN 00193103}, that he meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, Mr.
Mr. T N Goel (DIN 00193103) fulfills the condition specified in the Act and Rules framed there under for his
appointment as independent Direclor. The Board feels that his continued association with the company would be
of immense benefit and it is desirable to avail his services and therefore recommends his appointment as
Independent Director of the Company. R ,
Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. T N Goel (DIN 00193103), setting out the terms and conditions;of
his appointment would be available for inspection by members at the registered office of the Company during

normal business hours on working days. He hoids 400 equity shares in the Company. S

Except Mr. T N Goel (DIN 001 93103), none of the Diractors, Kay Managerial Personnel or their relatives is
interestad or concemned in this resotution. : - N
ITEM NO. § . - S e

B . il
Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052, is a Non Executive Independent Director in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement of the Bombay Stock Exchange and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing

from a member under Section 160 of the Companies Act,.2013 proposing his candidature for the office ‘of an
Independent Director of the Company. - . ' _ i

As per the provisions of section 149 of the Companies act, 2013, every listed company is required to have
atleast 1/3° of the total number of directors as independent Directors, hence the Board recommends the

Ordinary Resolution for approval of the members. .

The Company has received a declaration from Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052, that he meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, Mr.
Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052fulfills the condition specified in the Act and Rules framed there under for his
appeointment as independent Director. The Board feels that his continued association with the company would be
of immensa benafit and it is dasirable to avail his services and therefore recommends his appointment as
tndependent Director of the Company.

Copy of the draft letter of appointment of Mr. Rajesh Gupté. DIN 00183052, setting out the terms and conditions
of his appointment wouid be available for ingpection by members at the registered office of the Company during
normal business hours on working days. Ha does not hold any equity shares in the Company.  ~ .

Except Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Pearsonnel or-their relatives is
interested or concerned in this resolution. ' IR R
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Form ne. MGT-11
) Proxy Form
(Pursuant to Section 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of tha Companies (Management and -
Administration) Rules, 2014) ’ )

CIN : L17112HR1992PLC031621

Hame of the Company : Hisar Spinning Mills Limited .
flegistered office : 9™, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwan| Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar
Y We, being the member (s} of ................ Shares of the above named company, heraby appoint
Namae:

Address:

Emai ID:

Signature..... , or falling him
tlame: .

Address:

Emadl ID:

Signature caeeeennss, OF failing him
Name: - . - e e

Addrass;

Email ID:

SIgNature:...........c..oovveiieiiieeeeenins

mmﬂwrproxymaﬂwdmdvota(onapoﬂ)formdmandonmytwbchauatmﬁcmweumm Maating
uftlnCmrpmy.bbohdmemday.lhom"dadeeptmbu. 2015 at 11.00 A.M &t 9", KM Stone, Hisar
MM.VPODabm,Hiu:mdatanyadjpwmmthuadinmpodofsuehruohniomumhdw
batow: ,

S.NO. | RESOLUTIONS

1 Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Reports of the Board of Directors and
’ Auditors :

2 Re-gppointment of Mr. Anurag Gupta, DIN 00192888, retiring by rotation

3 Appointment of Auditors and fix their remuneration '
4 Appointment of Mr. T N Goel as an Independent Director _

5 Appointment of Mr. Rajesh Gupta as an Independent Director %
Signed this ........... dayof ..............., 2015

Signature of Shareholder:

Signature of Proxy Holder (s):

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. .

e ——

—l ]
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Registered Office: 9", KM Stone. Hisar Bhiwani
Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005
Tel: 01662-260397, TelFex:-81-1 662-260397
E-mail; hsm12000@rediffmail.com
Website; www.hizarspinningmitls.com
CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621

. Attendance Slip for 23" Annual General Meeting
‘ . {to be handed over at the Registration Counter)

o’
|

I/We hareby record my/our presence at the 23" Annual General Meeting of the company at 8%, KM Stone, Hisar
Bhiwan) Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar on 28" day of September, 2015 at 11.00 AM. .

Signature of the Member/Proxy present

. Note : The practice of distributing copies of the Annual Report at the Annual General Meeting has been
discontinued. Hence, parsons attending the Meeting are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Repoit

with them.

et

‘ PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE 'ABOVE ATTANDACE SLIP AT THE MEETING.

Registered Office: 9%, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani
Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005

Tel: 01682-260397, Tel/Fax:-91-1662-280397
Website: i inni i

CIN: L17112HR1992PLC02 1621

. '*9

| Dear Sir,” -

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies

(Management and Administration)Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies{Management and Administration
Amendment Rules, 2015 end Clausa 35 B of the Listing Agreement, the company is pleased to provide remote
e-woting facillty to the members to cast their votes electronically on all the resolutions set forth in the Notice:
convening the 23™ Annual General Meeling to be heid on Friday, 20" day of Seplember, 201 5 al 11.00 AM The.
compasny has engaged the Central Depository Services Limited(CDSL}) to provide tha remote e-voting facility:

7
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Your electronic voling particulars are aet oul below:*

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN User ID . Password
{Elsctronic Voting Event to
Number)

150826046

The remole o-voling facility will be available during the voting period as indicate hereify below:

Commencement of ramots e-voting perfod End of remote e-voting period

|From 9.00 AM IST on Saturday, 26” September, 2015 | T8I 5.00 P.M IST on Monday, .-28' September, 2015

Notes: .

+1. Please read the instructions printed overleaf bafore exercising your vote.

2. These details’and instructions form an integral part of the Notice for the 23™ Annual General Mesting(fo be
held on 29" 'day of September, 2015.

3. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to the paid up valus of their shares in the equity share
capital of the Company as on cut-off date of Tuesday, 22™ September. 2015, being the record date for the
purpose of voling. : .

T ket oAt 1 . -
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

Director's Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 23" Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015,

Financial Highlights Year ended Yaar ended
31.3.2015 31.3.2014
{Rs. in tacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Sales & other income _ 2404.79° 2116.37
Profit before Interest & Depraciation : 285.88 28163
Less : Interest 28.31 34.38
Profiti{Loss) before Dapreclation : 237.57 247.25
Less - Depreciation ' X 134.53 110.65
Profti/ (Loss) bafore Tax 103.04 136.60
Less - Provision for Taxation - Current Tax{MAT} 46.08 27.32
- MAT Credit . - 1.84
—Deferred Tax Liabllity/(Assets) . (21.88) (12.09)
-MAT Credit earlier yoar . - -
-Tax for earlier years ’ - -
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 78.87 119.73
Add : Surplius brought from previous year 100.04 {19.68)
178.81 100.04

Appropriations :
Proposed Dividend . NIL NIL
Corporate Dividend Tax NIL NIL
Surplus Carried 1o Balance Shest 178.91 100.04

‘ 178.91 100.04

OPERATIONAL & PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year under review, your Company ‘has achieved a sales tumover of Rs. 2404 .79 lacs as against sales
wurnoves of Rs. 2116.37 tacs during the previous year showing an increase of 13.62 % and profit {after tax) is Rs.
78.87 lacs for the year as against net profil (after tax) of Rs. 119.73 lacs during previous year showing decline of
50.81% due to slowdown in economy.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - ) _ .

During the year ended 31 March, 2015, the Company did not have any subsidiary company.

FIXED DEPOSITS Y,

The Company has not sccepted or renewed any depaosil from the public during the year under review purausnt
to the pmvisions_ of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thareunder.

DIVIDEND

Keeping in view to conserve fesources, -your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the yesr under
review. )




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED .
APPOINTMENT OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS (KMPs} AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

'n accordance with the provislons of the Companlas Act, 2013 and Articlas of Association of the Company Mr.
Anurag Gupta, DIN 00192888 shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and is eligibla
'or re-appointment, :

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. T N Goel, DIN 00193103 and Mr. Rajesh
Gupta, DIN 00193052, shall be appointed as Independent directors, at the forthcoming annual general meating
for S consecutive years.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered Accountants, Statulory Auditors, hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing
annual general meeting and belng eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. They have confired their
eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under and willingness to accept
the office of the Statutory Auditors, if reappointad.

'n tarms of provisions of section 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, your direclore recommend their re-
ippointment for a five year term starting from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
:ompany subject to ratification by the members at every Annual General Meeting. The auditors have forwarded
their certificate stating that their re-appointment, if made will be in accordance with the criteria specifiad under
section 141 of the Companies Act, 2012.

B3ECRETARIAL AUDIT

‘vir. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed by the Board to conduct Secretarial
Audit under provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act 2013. The Secretarial Audit report is annexed with
ihe Director’s Report as Annexure — 1. There is no qualification in secretarial audit report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO

Energy conservation continues to be an area of major emphasis in your Company. Efforts are made to optimize
the energy cost while carrying out manufacturing operations. As required by the provisions of section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the relevant information regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absarption and
Foraign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is given in the Annexure- 2 forming part of this report. \

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

None of the Directors o'f the Company are disqualified under the provisions of section 164 of the Companies Act
2013. The Diroctors have made the requisite disclosures, as required under the Companies Act 2013 and
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain the good standards of Corporate Govemance. The Company has
complied with the Corpgrate.Govemnance requirements.as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Pursuant to clause 49 of the Listing Agreeniant with the Stock Exchanges, the Report on Corporate Governance
together with M/s Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered Accountants Certificate regarding compliance of Corporate
Governance is annexed to this report. t

DIRECTCR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, itis hereby cord'u'mocl‘mm:

(a) in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2015, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures; -

{b) the Directors have salected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of tha
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED . - .

state of affairs of the Company as al 31st March, 2015 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date; )

{c} the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companles Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; - )

{d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; )

{e) the Direclors have lald down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
interal financial controls are adequate and are operating effactively.

n the Directors have devised proper systems io ensure compliance with the provislons of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequatety and operating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of extract of the Annual Return i given in Farm MGT-9 in Annexure - 3.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2014-15; Eight Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on 27" May, 2014,
12™ August, 2014, 3™ September, 2014, 5" September, 2014, 12" November, 2014, , 2™ pecember, 2014, 27%
January, 2015 and 12" February, 2015. As stiputated by Code of Indepandent Directors under Companias Act

2013 and under Listing Agreement, a separate meeting of independent directors was held on 12" February,
2015. The other relevant detells of Board meetings and the aitendance of the Directors etc. is given under

- Corporate Govemance Report annaxed with Director’s Report

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors of the ‘Company have submitted the Daclaration of Independence, as required
pursuant to section 149(7) of the Companios Act 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided in sub-section {6). P t,

PARTICU_LARS OF LOAN, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

No loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have bean given by the
Company. ' .

RELATED PARTY TRANSCATIONS ]
) 3

All related party transactions that were enteced into during the financial year were in the ordinery course of
business and were at arm’s length basis. No Materlally significant related party fransactions have been entered
by the Company with Promaters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. that had potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also

_the Board for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on yearly basis for the

transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The deétail of transactions entered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted is placed bafore the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. None of tha Diractors has any pecuniary ralationships or transactions vis-a-vis the company.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF QEXUAL HARASSMENT AT ’d‘_\I’ORKPLACE

The Company has in place an Antl Sexua!l Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexua:
Harassment of Women at the Workplace {Prevention, Prohbbition, & Redressal) Act. 2013. Internal Complaints.
Committes (ICC) has been set up 1o redress complaints received regarding sexue! harassment, All employee!:
(permanent, contractual, temporary. trainees) are covered under this policy. : ' ’ -

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2014-15

a) No. of complaints received: Nil -
b) No. of complaints disposed off: Nil ‘ . .
MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANGIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT

1
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There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Campany to which the financial statements relate end the
date of the repori other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

" RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is & continuous process across the organizalion designed to idénﬁfy. assess and frame a
response to threats that affect the achievement of its objeclives. It enables management {o prepare for risks
before they devolve to improve the operational effectiveness. Determination of the risk appetite allows
management to deploy resources according to the need. The Company firmly believes that to ensure effactive
risk management, there ought to be risk management plans to handie the risks based on the priorities and
challenges of the business. The faclors involved in identified risks must be considered and the accuracy of
assessment is very important. This implies, if proper risk management is implemented as a best practice then
massive capilal losses can be prevented. The succass of the Risk Management Framework depends on the
efforts taken to mitigate/ reduce aither the probability or consequence of the risk/ threat. Therafore considering
the same, Company’s Risk Management Policy includes three key elements;

|  Risk Assessment "

l. Risk Management and Risk Mitigation

il. Risk Monitoring

Risks are analyzed, consldering likelihood and impact, as a basis for determining how they should be managed
effeclively. Adhering the seme, Company has constituted Risk Management Commitiee and adopted an effective
Risk Management Policy in its place to assess, mitigate and to monitor the different risks exposed 1o the industry
in which it operates. Risk management policy of the company is available at company's website
www.hisarspinningmills.com. : ) 4

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION AND OTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS

Ll
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the
1erms of reference as set out under provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement read with provisions of Saction
178 cf the Companies Act, 2013 & rulas made thereundar, Apart from other Corporate Polices which ara
mandatory under Companies Acl as well as under Listing Agreement, the said Committee has also formulated
and recommended to the Board a Nomination & Remuneration Policy relating to director's appointment and
remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and
all other matters as stipulated under the provisions of section 178 of Companies Acl 2013,

The policy also relates to remuneration of Director's. KMP's and other employees of the Company. The said
policy is given in Annexure-4, :

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

Your Company maintains an adequata and effective Intarnal Control system commensurate with is size and
complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things. a reasonable assurance that transactions are
exgcuted with Management authorization and thet they are racorded in all matorial respects to permit
preparation of financial statements in conformity with established accounting principles and that the assets of

your Company are adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or loss.

During the year under review, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to
improve the internal financial control environment. Their scope of work inter-alia includes review of operational
efficiency, effecliveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in al areas. In
addition to statutory audit, the financial controls of the Company at vanous locations are reviewed by the Internal
Auditors, wha raport thelr findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Commiitea actively reviews the
adequacy and effactiveness of Intemal control system and suggests further strengthening the same, wherever
required. .

e

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During ths-yaar under reviaw, there Is no material order(s) passed by the regulators or courts or tiibunal
impacting the going concamn status and company's gparation in future.
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e

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES (SHARE CAPITAL AND OEBENTURE} RULES 2014

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as al 31% March 2015 was Rs. 3,73,50,000/- comprisiny
of 37.35,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. As required under Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rule
2014, during the year under review, the Company, has not Issued equity shares with differential voting rights,
sweat equity shares, prefarance shares and employea stock options and also not mada any provision for
purchase of iis own shares by employees or by trustees. .

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES

During the year undar review, there is NIL disclosura as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies
Act 2013, .

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set oul
under the provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement raad with provisions of Saction 177 of Companies Acl,
2013 & rulas made thereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to it by Board of Directors of the
Company. The Commitiee reviews the internal audit reports and findings of internal auditors along with the
comments of management. The functions of the Audit Committee among others include approving and
implementing the audit procedures, effeclive supervision of financia! reporting system, whistle Blower
Machanism, intemel control and procedures, recommanding appolntment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to
Board and alsc ensuring compliances with regulatory guidelines. Tha Board has constituted tha Audit Committea
comprises of following: ;

5.N0. | NAME DESIGNATION |
1 Sh. Rajesh Kumar Gupta, Non-executive and Independent Director Chaiman |
2 Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director Member
3 Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-execulive and Indepandent Diractor ' Mambaer

The olher relevant details of Audit Committee are given undér Corporate Govemance Report annexed with
Direcior's Report.
VIGIL MECHANISM/MWHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named “Whistle Blower PolicyfVigil Mechanism® to deal with Instance of
fraud snd mismanagement, | any. The datail of the Policy |s axplained-in tha Corporate Governance Report and
also available at company’s wabslte www. hisarspinningmills.com.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its parformance and as well
as that of its committees, individual Directors, including the Chalrman of the Board in compiiance with the
Companies Act 2013 and Clause 48 of Listing Agreement. The exercise was carred out through a structured
evaluation process covering various aspects of lhe Boards functioning such as composition of the Board, its
commiltee & members, their experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obiigations,
govemance and also in accordance with Performance Evatuation Policy of Company. Broadly the performance
of Non-Independent/Executive/Whole Time Director(s) was.ovaluated on the basis of their own performance,
expertise, Intelligence, their qualitative & quantitative contrbution towards operational achievements,
organizationa! performance etc. The paerformance of Non-Executive Independent Directors were evaluated on
the basis of their constructive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their informed & balanced
decision-making, ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The performance
evaluation of various Board Commiitees constituted under Companies Act & Listing Agreement was made on the
basls of thetr respective terms of referance, discharge of functions, governance atc.

As stipulated by Code of Independent Directors under Companies Act 2013 and Listing Agreement, a separate

meeting of independent directors 12" February, 2015 to review the performanca of Non-Independent directors

including the Chairman and the Boards as a whole. The independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content 1
13
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED [l

and timeliness of flow of information between Management and the Board.

Disclosure of information’s as required under ruje 5{1) of Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 RS -

The Provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 requiring particulars of the employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs per year to
ve disclosed in the Report of Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company as none of the employees
was in receipl of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs during the financial year 2014-15. R

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remiuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are provided in the Annexure forming part of the Annual Report. Having regard to the provisions of
Section 136(1} read with its relevant proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report excluding the
aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for
inspeclion al the Regislered Office of the Company during working hours and any member interested in
obtaining such information may wrile to the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished free of cost.

1

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has affirmed that the remuneration is as per the
remuneralion policy of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish lo convey their appreciation to al! of the Compaqy’s employees for their enormous efforts as
well as their collective contribution to the Company's performance.~The Directors: wouk! also like to thank
shareholders, customers, dealers, suppliers, Financial Institutions, bankers, Government and all the other

business associates for the continuous support given by them to the Company and their confidence in its
management,

By order of the Board

Place: Chandigarh

{Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 04, 2015

Chairman Cum Managing Director
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Corpomte Governance Report

1. Company’'s philosophy on code of Governance -

Corporatas governance is a value-based framework to manage our Company affairs in a fair and transparent
manner. As we usa this framework to malntaln accountability in all our affalrs. We have evolved guidelines and
best practices over the years to ensure {imely and accurate disclosure of information regarding our financials,
performence, leadership and governance of the Company.

2. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company has an optimurm combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors
50 &s (o have a balanced structure. As on 31 March 2015, the Board of Direclors consists of six Diraclors, out
of which two are Promoter Directors {Chairman cum Managing Director and executive Director) and three are
independent Non-Executive Directors. Smt. Sepna Kansal was appoinled as Woman Director {Non-Executive)
on 20.08.2014. None of the Directors on lhe board is a member on more lhan 10 committees and Chairman of
more lhen 5 commitlees {as spacified in clause 49 of the Lisling Agreemenl with Stock Exchange), across alt he
companies in which they are Directors. The necessary disclosures regarding committee memberships have
been made by ali the Directors. The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the condilions of independence
specified in Section 149 of Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under and meet with requirements of
Clauss 49 of ListingAgreement,

During the financial year 2014-15, Eight Board meetings wera held. The meetings were held on 27™ May, 2014,
12™ August, 2014, 3" September, 2014, 5™ September. 2014, 12 November, 2014, . 2™ December, 2014, 27"
January, 2015 and 12™ February, 2015. As slipuleted by Code of Independent Directors under Companias Act
2013 and under Listing Agreemenl, a separate meeling of independent direclors was held on 12" February,
2015 to raview the performance of Non-Independent directors including the Chairman and the Boards as a
whole. Tha Independent Directors alzo reviewad the quality, content and timelinass of follow of information
between Managemaent and the Board.

The names and categories of Directors on the board, their sttendance at Board Meetings during the year and a
the last Annual General Meeting, as also tha number of Directorships/ Committee memberships/ Chairmanship
held by them in other Companies dre glven below: -

No. of Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03.2015:-

NamelofiDirectorl| Category, Attendance NoYos lliNG Ef'iléﬁ,ﬁg;éh_ipg;cnqinrggnsh_ip_-in
Particulars Directorshi Corﬁmittei‘:;@’ 7 §.
P Wity T ¥
Son [z 0acM] IO el M EmBers fil Chalmmanshlp (84T¢
Mecting Directorshi P RN €3
= =
Sh. Gopal Krishan| Chairman 8 Yos - 1 Nil Nil
Gupta cum MD
Sh. T N Goal INED 8 Yes Nil Nil Nil NIl
Smt. Sapna NED 4 Yes Nil Nit Nil Nil
Kansal®
Sh. Anurag Gupta ED 8 No Nil NIl Nil Nil
Sh. Vikas Gupta INED 4 No Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sh. Rajesh Gupta INED 8 No Nil Nil Nil Nil

INED : Independent Non Executive Director

NED : Non Executive Director

MO : Managing Director {Executive)

ED : Executive Director .

* : Smit. Sapna Kansal was appolinted as Director w.e.f. 20.06.2014. .

+ :The commitiees considered for the above purpose are those as specifiad in Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement(s) i.e. Audit Committes and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.
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3. Code of Conduct

In terms of provisions of Clause 49 of the Lisling Agreement and conlemporary practices of good Corporate
Governance, the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Managerment of the
Company, All Board members and Senior Management Persannel have affirmed compliance wilh he Code. A
declaration signed by Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, DIN 00192985, Managing Director of the Company to this effect
is enclosed at the end of this report.

4. CEO and CFOQ Certification

Sh. Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) & Sh, Gopal Krishan Gupta, DIN 00192985, Managing Director
(CEQ) of the Company have certified to the Board under the provisions of Clause 49 (IX) of the Listing
Agreement, infer-alia, dealing with lhe review of financial statements and cash flow stalement for the year ended
on 31" March 2015, transactions entered into by the Company during the said paeriod, their responsibility for
establishing and maintaining internal control systems for financial reporting and evaluation of the effectiveness of
the internal control syslem and making of necessary disclosures to the Auditors and the Audit Commitiee have
been duly complied with. The said certificate is attached and forms part of the Annual Report.

5. Audit Committee

Audit Committea functions in accordance with Lthe terms of reference as set out under the provisions of Clause
49 of Listing Agreement read wilh provisions of Seclion 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made
thereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee
reviews the internal audil reports and findings of inlernal auditors along with the comments of management. The
functions of the Audit Committee among others, include approving and implemenling the audit procedures,
elfective supervision of financial reporting system, Whistle Blower Mechanism, internal control and procedures,
recommending appointment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board and also ensuring compliances with
requlatory guidelines. The composition, names of members, chairperson, particulars of the meetings, and
attendance of the members during the financial year are as below:

During the financial year 2014-15, Four Audit Committee meetings were heldi.on 27" May, 2014, 2%
August, 2014, 12" November, 2014 and 12” February, 2015,

S.NO. | NAME DESIGNATION NO. OF

~MEETINGS
ATTENDED
DURING THE
YEAR 2014-

[ 20145

i1 Sh. Rajesh Kumar Gupta. Non-exaculive and Independant | Chairman 4

i Director )

12 Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director Member 4

' 3 Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-executive and independent Director Member 4

b
The Managing Director along with the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Intermnal Auditors were invitees to the
meetings. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Audit Committee. 1
: [
6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee funclions in accordance with the terms of reference as sel out
under provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement read with provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 & rules made there under. The Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee’ have formulated different
policies as required under the Companies Acl as well as under Listing Agreement i.e. Performance Evalution
Policy of Board of Directors, Nomination & Remuneration Policy relaling to remunemtion of the Directors, KMPs
& olher employees and Board Divarsity Policy.

DOuring the financial year 2014-2015, no meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was held.
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Remuneration Policy

The objective of this Policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will rewarg
and retain talent. The Company has adopted and implemented the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the requirement of the Committee to recommend to ihe Board a policy, relaling to the remuneralion
for ihe directors, KMPs and other employees.

i} Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

No remuneratio‘n was paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the year 2014-15.

ii) Remuneration of Executive Directors

Sh.  Anurag
Direclor

Gupta,

There is no Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESCP) in the Company as on 31" March 2015, Further, there are
no pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executlive Director vis-a vis the Company which has potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

7. Stakeholders Retationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as sel out under
provisions of Clause 49 of Uisting Agreement read with' provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 &
rules made thereunder i.e. redrassing of Shareholders/investors complaints, regarding to share transfers, non-
receipt of balance sheet/dlvidend by the shareholders etc. During the financial year 2014-15, four Stakeholders
Relationship Commiltee.meetings were heid on 27" May, 2014, 12" August, 2014, 12" November, 2014 and 127
February, 2015. The composition, names of the members, chairperson, particulars of the meetings and
attendance of the members during the year are as below. )

5.N0. |NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION NQ. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
DURING THE YEAR 2014-2015
1 Sh. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director Chairman 4
Sh. Rajesh Gupta, Nor-executive and|Member
2 Independent Diractor 4
Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-executive and|Member ' 4
3 Independant Director

During the financial year, the request for transfer/demat/remat of shares, change of address etc tave been duly
effected. During the yesr, two complaints were received. One grievance was pending at the end of the linancial
year. Sh. Sharad Goel is the Compliance Officer of the Company for SEBI/ Stock Exchange/ROC related issues
etc. - .-

8. Risk Management Committeo:

The Clause 49 mandates for constitution of Risk Management Commilttee. The Commitiee is required (o lay
down the procedures to inform to the Board about the risk assessment and minimization procedures and the
Board shall be responsible for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan of the Company.
Adhering the same, Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee and adopted a Risk Management
Pollcy under which there are three key elements Le. Risk Assessment, Risk Management & Risk Mitigation and
Risk Monitoring. These procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that exécutive management controls risk
through means of a properly defined framework. The Risk Management Policy is available on webslte of
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:ompany at www. hisarspinningmills.com.

Dunng the financial year 2014-15, one Risk Management Commiltee meeting was held on 12" February, 2015.
The composition, names of the members, chairperscn, particulars of the meelmgs and atlendance of the
meambers during the yaar are as below

S.NO. |NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED
DURING THE YEAR 2014-2015
1 Anurag Gupta . Chairman - | 1
2. |vikas Gupta Member . 1
3

t Sharad Goel Mamber 1

9. Whistie Blower Policy

The Compeany has adopted Whistle Blower Policy and has established tha necessary machanism for employess
1o repont concems about unethical behavior, This policy is reviewed quarterty by tha Audit Committes to check
the effectiveness of the policy. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Commmee The relevant
Jetaits of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Direclor's Report.

‘10. General Body Meetings ‘

‘The iast three Annual General Mestings of the Company were held as under -

YEAR VENUE DATE TIME DETAILS OF SPECIAL
RESOLUTION
201112 9™ KM Stlone, Hisar Bhiwanl road,| . 20/08/2012 MO00AM. | 1 Appointment of Sh.
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar} - ' | Gopal Krishan Gupta

’ a3 Managing Director

2 | Appointment of Sh.
Anurag Gupta as
Executive Director

201213 8™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road,| 30/09/2013 | 11.00 AM. i NIl
V.P.Q Dabra (Hisar)
2013-14 8" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road,| 29/09/2014 11.00 ALM. ' Nil

V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)

No Postat ballots were used for voting in these rneeungs Al the forthcoming AGM, thera s no item on the
agenda that needs approval by Postal ballots. .

11. Subsidiary Company

During the year ended 31% March, 2015, neithar the Company has any subsidiary nor any matarial listed/unlisted
subsidiary company.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company's Risk Management Policy is annexed as Annexure 5, The same is also placed at the weabsite of
the Company.

13. Disclosures

The company has formutated the policy on dealing with Retaled Party Transaclions in pursuance to the
provigions of clause 49 of Listing Agreemant. All related party transactiona of tha Company are dealt with in
accordance with the said policy and as per provisions of section 188 of Companies Act 2013 & rules made
thereunder. There are no materially significant related parly transactions made by the Company with its
promoters, Direclors or management, thair relatives elc. Ehat may have polential conflict with the interest of the
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Company st large. Suitable disdosd}es as required by the Accounting Standards {AS 18) are disclosed in
Explanatory Notes on Accounts in the Annual Report. The relevant details of Related Party Transactions policy of
the Company is mentioned under Director's Report.

During the last three years, theré were no strictures or penalties imposed by aither SEBI or the Stock Exchanges
or any Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets. .

14. Parformance avaluation of Board of Directors

During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for. evaluating its performance and as well as that of its
committees, individua! Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. The exercise was carfed out through a
structured evaluation process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the
Board, its members, their experience & competencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, governance
etc. in. accordance to the Performance Evaluation Policy of the Company. The necessary details regarding
criteria of performance evaluation Is mentioned under Director's Repont.

15. Familiarisation Programme/induction for Independent Directors

At the Board Meatings, apart from Lthe regular aganda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided
a deep and thorough Insight into the businass model of the Company and updates either by way of presentation
of business units or otherwise. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their
experiance. At the time of eppointing an Independenl Diraclor, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her,
which inter afia explains the role, function, duties, responsibilities expecied of him/er as a DBirector of the
Company and expected time commitmenis. As required under Clause 48 of Listing Agreement, Company has
conducted a famillarization programme for its independent directors under which the necaessary information was
provided to familiarize them with the nature, activities, products of the Company and aiso about their roles,
rights, responsibilities in the Company.

16. Board Diversity Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee have formulated Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the:
Clause 49 of ‘Listiig Agreement. Under the said palicy, it i$ recognized that a Board composed of appropriately
qualified people with broad range of experience relevant to the business of the Company is important to achieve
effective comorate govemnance and sustained commarcial success of the Company. In order 1o ensure that the:
Company's boardroom has appropriate balance of skliils, exparience and diversity of perspectives that are
imperative for the execution of its business strategy, the Company shall while selecting the Board Member:
consider a number of factors, including but not limited to age, cullure, funclional skills, industry/professional
experienca, financial literate and inlegrity etc.. The ulimate decision will be based on merit and contdbution tha!
the setected candidates will bring to the Board.

17. Means of Communications \ . ,
The quartery, half yearly & annual financial results, notices etc. are published in widely circulating national &
local dailies newspaper The Statesman / The Pioneer In English editlons and Vyapar Bharti in Hindl Edition. Tha
same are also belng posted on the website of BSE www.bseindia.com under Scrip Code 521068 and also on the

webslte of the company. The Management Discussion and Analysis report forms a part of this Annual Repont.
18, Genaral Shareholder informations

Annual General Meeting at 11:00 A.M. on 29™ day of September 2015 at Registered Office of the Company a:
9™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, V.P.O Dabra (Hisar):

Financial Calendar : Ist April to 31% March
Date of Book Closure : 25.09. 2015 to 29.09.2015

{both days inciusive)
Dividend Payment Date TNA -
Listing on Stock Exchange : Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
Scrip Code » 521068,
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L17112HR1992PLCO3 1621
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4

CDSL ISIN No. . INEESSEC1014

Annual listing fee for the year 2015-2016 has duly bean paid to Bombay Stock Exchange(BSE).

521068 {Source: www.bseindia.com}

"Market price data — High and Low during each month on BSE In tha financlal year 2014-15. Stock code -

Manths _ [ arign_ | Low ] - “Gtoséa 1 3| RN A e DO
April, 2014 1M.50° 11.50 11,50 100

May, 2014 -l - - -

June, 2014 14 9.87 9.87 1100

July, 2014 0.8 7.28 7.28 800

August, 2014 - - : - -

September, 2014 . - - - - -

-85, Ball Nagar, New Dalhi-110015 *

Share Transfer System ’ : Shares ledged in physical forrm with the RTA directty
or through Company, are processed and retumed,
duly transferved, within fiftean days normally, except- -
in cases which are under objection.

In respect of shares hakd in dematerialised mode, the
transfer takes place instantaneously between the
transferor, transferee and the Depository Participant

Compliance Officer . Mr. Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer.

E-mail IDs : hsmi2000 @ rediffmail.com

Distribution of shareholding as on 31" March, 2015.

through elecironic debit/credit of the accounts involved.

October, 2014 6.92. 5.38 5.38 - 700
November, 2014 5.12 4.87 ' 5.1 2100
Decarmbaer, 2014 6.81 5.36 6.81 "~ 1600
January, 2015 ' 8.28 7.15 7.84 1 1300
‘| Fabruary, 2015 7.45 5.86 5.86 ) ' .t 2400
March, 2015 8.15 6.15 8.15 100 )
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent : M/s Indus Portfolio Private limited ,

»

RangalofShares B off CYoflERarcholders|| N oo LS bato <IN I XCHE harchotd ng R
S |~ bt g (G o ] A o
0-500 10144 T 87.43 | 1472830 | - ' 39.44
501-1000 141 1.35 112400 Tam
1001-5000 71 0.68 141800 379
5001-10000 15 014 115700 3.10
10001-20000 12 0.12 198418 5.31
20001-30000 10 , 0.10 264430 7.08
30001-40000 . 4 0.04 145350 3.89
40001-50000 , 3 0.03 143000 | 383
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&

A I [ ] . e v
PG fe 0 08 Shareholdess

R_éngé;'?f_shéréfégg &5 N0l of g

% of Sharg\lg_glgers No. of Shares % of Shareholding

0.07 556115 14.89

50001-100000 7
Above 100000 4 0.04 5850357 15.66
C R L e R R

Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March,

e R - -~ | e

2015.

Promoters/Promoter Group 1845100 49.40

FI's/Fil's/ Banks! Mutual Funds - -

NRIs 200 0.00

Bodies Corporates 92500 2.48

Indian Public 1797200 4812 " e

Depository Receipts have been issued

Shares 'held by Custodian & against which

GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA 115000
ANURAG GUPTA 104250
SAPNA KANSAL 63100
TRILOKI NATH GOEL 400
Dematerialisation of shares 706390 (18.91%) shares
Plant(s} Location o™ K.M. stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,

V.P.0. Dabra (Hisar) 125005
Address for correspondence Hisar Spinning Mils limited

9™ K.M. stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,

V.P.0. Dabra {Hisar} 125005

Ph. 01662-260397 Fax: 91-1662-260397
E-mail ID's hsml2000@prediffmail.com

Place: Chandigarh
Dated: September 04, 2015

By order of the Board

(Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN-00192985
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Declaration

As provided under Clause 49 of lhe Listing Agreemenl with the Stock Exchanges, it is hereby declared that all
the Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year
ended 31" March 2015.

(Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Chaiman Cum Managing Director
DIN-00192985

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Board of Directors .
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited ~

{a) Wae have reviewed the fi nanaal statements and lhe cash flow statement of Hisar Spinning Mills
Limited for the year ended 31* ~March, 2015 and to the best of our knoMedge and belief, we
state that;

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements present a frue and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b} there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions'entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of .
conduct.

{c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of intamal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls.

{d} We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commitiee:
{i) that there are no significant changes in intemal control over financial reporting during the year;
(i) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and
(i) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Yours sincerely,
(Gopal Krishan Gupta) (Sharad Goel)
CChairman Cum Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chandigarh’
Date: Septamber 04, 2015




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED (I
ANNEXURE ‘1’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT '

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies {Appointmeant
and Remuneration Personnel} Rules, 2014

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2015

To,

The Members,

Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road.
V.P.QO Dabra ( Hisar), Haryana -125005

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (herelnafter called “the company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner thal provided me a reasonable basis lor evaluating lhe corporate conducts/siatutory
compliance and expressing my opinion thereon. .

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Limited's books, papers, minutas books , forms and retums
filed and other records malntained by the company and alsc the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during lhe conduct of sacretarial audit, | hereby reporl that
in my opinion , the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2015
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes
and compliance -machanism in place to the exlent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

| have examined the books, papérs minute books, forms anci'relums filed and other records malntalinad by Hisar
Spinning Mills Limited for the financia! year ended on 31/03/2015 according to the provisions of

The companies Act, 2013 ( the Act } and the rules made thereunder ;
The Securities Contracts { Regulations ) Act, 1956 { SCRA ) and the rules made thereunder ;
The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed thereunder ;
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1988 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Invastment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings ,
« The following Regulations and Guidelfines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ( SEBI Act ) :-
(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011;
(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Prohlbltion of insider Trading) Regulations, 2011;
(c)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Reqguirement}
Regulations, 2011; .
(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1883 ragarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(e)The company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered into
with tha Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, '
I have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for systems and machanism put in
place by the company for compliances under the applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company., the
detail of which are attached as Annaxure to the management representation.

| have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the followings:
« Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
« Tha Listing Agreemants entered into by the company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, during the
year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentloned above. -
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| { We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Exacutive Direclors, Non -
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were caried out in compliance wilh the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meeling, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of
the minutas.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, suits, rules, regulations
and guidelines. '

Pace: Chandigarh . .-
Date; August 26, 2015 . Sanjiv Kumar Goel
' ’ FCS No.2107
C P No. 1248
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Annexure ‘2' to Directors' Report

Information as per saction 217(1)(e) read with companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Directors)
Rules 1988 and forming part of the Director's Report for the period ended 31st March, 2015.

l. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy conservation measures taken :

The Company has been giving high priority to con
equipments. All efforts are made for installing energ

b) Additional investment and proposals,

energy :

New equipments, whenever required, are purchased from time to time.

servation of energy by close monitoring of energy consufning
y saving devices wherever required.

if any, belng implemented for reduction of consumption of

¢) Impact of the measures at (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:

The measures taken to conserve energy resulted in more production. Howev

consumption due to increased production and increase in rates of power.

er, there was no savings in

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of the
annexure to the rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule thereto:

L Vg = W

"

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
A) Power and Fuel consumption :
a) Purchased Unit (KW) 4132788 3991147
Total Amount 33508880 20417825
RatefUnit (Rs} 8.11 7.37
b) Through Diesel Generator
Units(KW) 304500 256309
. Total Amount 4845544 3682161 .
Rate/Unit (Rs/KW) 15.91 14.37
B) Consumption Per Unit Of 1457 Units 1655 Units |
Production '
Steam Coal Nil Nil
Furnace Qil Nil Nil
Others/internal Generators Nil Nil
Cotton Yamn Production In MT 3045.629 2566.525 :
Total Units Consumed 4437268 4247456 ¢
|
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ll. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION -

Efforts made in technology absarption as por Form-B of the Annexure to the Rules.

1} Research & Development (R & D)

a) Specific area in which R & D carried by the Company: Nii 4
b) Benefits derived as a resull of the above R & [ Nil

c} Future plan of Action: NII

d} ExpenditureonR& D {Rs.In Lacs)
Capital NIL
Revenua NIL 4
Total NIL
Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of Total Turnover = NIL J
2) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION .
a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: Nil
b} Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e, g.- product improvemenl, cost reduction,
product devalopmaent, import substitution etc: Nil
c) In case of imporied tachnology (imported during the last § year reckoned from the beginning of ’
the financiat year) -- Nil A
3) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO
il Activities relating to export, initiatives taken to increase export, developmant .of new export markets for
products and services and export plans: Nil ‘
 Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account:
Amount (in Rs.) h
Particulars For the Year ended 31.03.2015
Commission on sales 50921 .
Capilal advences 5050817 |
Total 5101538 i

Eamings In forelgn exchange:

Zxport of goods celculated on FOB basis
Amount (in Rs.)

Particulars For the Yoar ended 31.03.2015
Manufactured Goods 26850999
Total 2850999
By order of the Board
Flace: Chandigarh {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: Septembar 04, 2015 Chairman Cum Managing Director
) DIN-00192385
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Annexure 'Y to Directors’ Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2015

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

(Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

of

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) JCIN - [L17112HR1992PLC031621
fi) |Registration Date : [10.04.1992
ii) |Name of the Company - |Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

tv) |Category/ Sub-Category of the
Company

- | Public Company limiled by shares

v) |Address of the Registered office and
contact details :

. |g" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, Village & Post Office

Dabra, Hisar

vi) {Whether fisted company

| Yes

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

vi) |Name, Address and Contact details of {:

indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-
110015

IL. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumover of the company shall be stated.-

SI. No. |Name and Description of main products / | NIC Code of the %% to total turnover of the
services Product/ service company
1. |Spinning 2351/23521247112472 100
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Itl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: - Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
_J} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at lhe beginning of | No. of Shares held al the end of the year
Shareholders the year
Demat .Physic.al Total % of Damat Physical |Total % of %
Total Tolal Chang
Shares Shares |a
during
the

I year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) 388390 | 1456710 1845100 | 49.40 | 388390 | 1456710 | 1845100 | 45.40
individuall/HUF
) Central Gowvt - = - - - - R " - - -
=} State Gowt {s) - - — - - - — - -
1) Bodies Corp. - -
a) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
iy Any Other. ... - - - - - - - — -
Sub-total {A) 388390 | 1456710 | 1845100 | 49.40 | 388390 | 1456710 | 1845100 | 49.40 -
(1):-
{2} Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Aa) NRIs - - - -- - - - - - -
Individuals
b) Other - - -- - - - - - - -
Individuals
c¢) Badies Corp. - - - - - - - - -
d} Banks / FI - -- - - - - - - -
&) Any Other. ... - - - - - - - - -
Sub-total (A) - - - - - - - - —
(2):-
Total 388390 [ 1456710 1845100 | 49.40 | 3388390 | 1458710 | 1845100 | 49.40 -
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A) 1)+ A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds - - - - - — - - -
b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
d) State Gowi(s) - - -- - - - - - -
e) Venture - - - - — - - - —_
Capital Funds
f) Insurance - - - - - - - - -

|
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Comparies
g)Flis

o

h) Fareign
Venture Capital
Funds

i} Others
(specity)

Sub-total
(BH1):-

2. Non-institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

iy Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

66700

25100

91800

88800

2.45

92500

2.48

iy individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

185000

15332800

1728800

46.30 | 196900

1531200

1728100

46.27

li} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
axcass of Rs 1
lakh

49100

20000

69100

1.85 48100

20000

69100

1.85

¢) Others
(specily)

200

200

0.00 200

200

0.00

Sub-total
(B}2):-

311000

1578900

1889900

50.60 | 315000

1574900

1889900

$0.60

Total Public
Sharehotding
(B)=(B)(1)+
{B)2)

311000

1578900

1889900

50.80 | 315000

1574800

1889900

§0.80

C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

.

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

899390

3035610

(l)Shareholding of Promotars

3735000

100 |703390

3031610

3735000

100

t
|

S No. | Shareholder's Sharehokling at the beginning of | Share holding at the end of the
Name the year year -
No. of % of total %of No.of [% of total {%of % change
Shares Shares of Shares |Shares |[Shares of [Shares in share
tha Pledge the Pledged / |hoiding
company d/ company jencumber |during the
ancum ad to total |year
bered shares
29
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to total
shares

1. |Ram Charan . - R
Budhwar 25000 0.00 25000 0.00

2. |[RaviRaj Singh 400 0.00 |- 400 0.00 -

3. | satvir Singh 24940 0.00 |- 24940 0.00 -

4. |Arun Goel 3100 067 |- 3100 0.67 -

5. | Mari Krishan 45000 0.01 |- 45000 0.01 -

6. [Sharat G Goel 27940 0.67 |- 27940 0.67 -

7. | Sherat G Goel ‘97600 0.08 |- 87600 0.08 -

8. |Devinder Goel 38400 1.20 |- 39400 1.20 -

9. |Gulab Singh Goel 10000 075 |- 10000 0.75 -

10| Gulab Singh Goal 400 261 |- 400 2.61 -

11.| Sharad Goel 40000 1.05 |- 40000 1.05 -

) 12.'Manju Goel 48900 027 |- 48900 0.27 -

13.| Triloki Nath Goel 75000 0.01 |- 75000 0.01 -

14.| Hari Krishan Goel 115000 1.07 |- 115000 1.07 -

15.|Sunita Goel 163867 1.31 |- 163867 1.31 -

16.{ Usha Rani Gupta 60000 201 |- 60000 | 2.01 -

" 17.{Gopat Krishan . .
Gupta 63100 3.08 63100 3.08

18.|M.L. Kansal 12400 439 |- 12400 4.39 -

19.| Sharda Kansal 33150 161 |- 33150 1.61 -

20.} Sapna Kansal 79765 1689 |- 79785 1.89 -

21.| Salesh Gupta 29100 033 |- 29100 0.33 -

22.| Shashi Bhushan - -
Gupta B7050. 0.89 87050 0.89

23.| Anuj Gupta 28950 214 |- 29950 2.14 -

24.| Anuj Gupta ( HUF) 17018 078 |- 17018 0.78 -

25.| Anurag Gupta 20000 233 |- 20000 2.33 -

26.| Ashwani Gupta 27000 080 |- 27000 0.80 -

27.| Gopal Krishan - -
Gupta & Sons HUF 24500 0.46 24500 0.46

28.|Roshan Lal Gupta . - ) -
& Sons HUF 5100 0.54 5100 0.54

29 Har Kumar 32800 072 |- 32800 0.72 -

30.[Tara Devl 7700 068 |- 7700 0.66 -
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31.| salesh Gupta 10000 0.14 |- 10000 0.14 - -
32.| Anurag Gupla - - -
{HUF) 25000 0.88 25000 0.88
33.] Anju Gupta 28000 0.21 |- 26000 0.21 - -
34. Gopal Krishan - R _
Gupta Executor
Roshan Lal 25000 0.27 | 25000 0.27
35.| Gopal Anurag - _ _
(HUF) 160000 0.67 . 160000 0.67 ;
36.] Gopal Krishan & - - - )
Sons (HUF) 8700 0.70 8700 0.70 ;
37.: Gopal Anuj (HUF) 9300 087 |- 9300 0.67 - - |
36.| Niknil Goel 146180 az8 |- 146190 | 4.28 - -
38.! Shilpa Goe! 10000 0.23 |- 10000 0.23 - - !
40.| Ritash Goel 11000 0.25 |- 11000 0.25 - -
41.[ Ankit Goel 19100 391 |- 19100 3.91 - -
42.!Bindu Goel 5100 .27 |- 5100 0.27 - -
43.1 Shrutl Goel 7200 029 |- 7200 0.29 - -
44.) Tarun Goel 93600 0.51 |- 93600 .[ 0.51 - -
435.|Manju Goal 9100 0.14 |- 9100 0.14 Co- -
48.|Megha Goel 17200 018 |- 17200 | 0.9 - -
47.[Sharad Goel 17400 251 |- 17400 2.51 - -
48.| Naveen Kansal 25000 024 |- 25000 0.24 - -
49.| Anurag Gupta 400 046 |- 400 | 046 - -
50.| Anuj Gupta 24940 0.47 |- 24940 | 047 - -
Total ) ) ) i
1845100 49.40 1845100 | 49.40

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) : NO CHANGE

S Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total sheres
shares . |shares of the [shares of the company
company
Al tha beginning of the - - - -
year .
Increase/Decrease - - - -
during the year

At the End of the year |~ - - - -
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=B

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs):

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
) Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares | % of total No. of % of total % change in
shares of shares shares of share holding
the the - tduring the
company company year
1 Shashi Rani & Shyam Sunder [49100 1.3 49100 1.31 -
Gupta '
2 |Sushila Goel 20000 0.54 20000 0.54 -
3 Shri Parasram Holdings Pvt. (18300 0.51 18300 0.51 .
Ltd
4 Amulya Leasing & Finance Ltd. 16700 0.45 16700 0.45 -
5 Multiplex Capital Ltd. 15800 0.43 15900 0.43 -
6 |CPR Capital Services Ltd, 12800 0.34 12800 0.34 ;
7 Sunita Goel 8000 0.21 8000 0.21 -
8 Raman Mehra 7300 0.20 7300 0.20 -
9 Alankit Assignments Limiled 6700 0.18 6700 0.18 .
10 Bajrang Lal Goel 6200 017 6200 0.17 -

{v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Parsonnael:

- i

Sl. iFor Each of tha Directors and Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. [ KMP year during the year
Name of the Director/ KMP No. of shares | % of total shares of [No. of % of total shares
. - | the company shares of the company
1. |GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA . 115000 3.08 - -
2. |ANURAG GUPTA 104250 2.79 - -
3. [SAPNA KANSAL 63100 1.69 - -
4. {SHARAD GOEL 133000 3.56 |
5. | TRILOKI NATH GOEL . 400 0.01 - -
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

|(_

)

(Rs. in Lacx
Secured Loans Unsecured Dedosits Total
excluding deposits | Loans Indebtedness
Indebtadness at the baginning of the financial year ‘
i) Principal Amount 35209542 - - 35209542
i) Interest due but - - - -
not paid I
ifi) Interest accrued 208966 - - 208966
but not due
Total (i+il+iii) 35418508 - - 35418508 :
Change in indebtedness during the financia! year !
(a) Addition - - - -
(b} Reduction $051738 - - 5051738
Nat Change (5051738) - - (5051738)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 29627880 - - 29627880
i) interest due but
not paid
iii) Interest accrued 174009 - - 174009
but not due
Total (I+il+ill) 29801889 - - 298012889
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V(. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

.\. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andfor Manager :- |

t.acs)

{Rs. in

351, | Particulars of
no. {Remuneration

Name of MO/WTD/ Manager

——m

Total Amount

Mr. Anurag Gupata -

1. |Gross salary
() Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the
Incoma-tax Act, 1961

360000 -

360000

{b} Value of perquisites
u/s 17{2}) Income-tax
Act, 1981 ’

{c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

i

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

-ﬁ-ll'.u'll

Commission

- a5 % of profit

- others, specify. ..

5. [Others, please specify
(Provident fund}

Total (A)

360000 -

360000

Ceiling as per the Act

As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013

B. Remuneration to otherd

irectors:

{Rs. in Lacs)

Sl. |Particulars of
no. |Remuneration

Name of Direclors

Total Amount

1. Independent
Directors

Fea for attending board
f commitiee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total {1}

2. Other Non-Executive
Direclors

Fee for attending board
/ committae meetings

Commission




[
i

———

|
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Others, please specify -

Total (2) —~

Total (B)=(1+2) o -

Total Managerial _ ’ -

[ e K

Remuneration _ _
Overall Ceiling as per | No Sitting Fees were paid to any Independent Director
the Act -
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
. . {Rs. in Lacs
Sl. - |Particutars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
no, .
Total
1. Gross salary - - ' - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in saction 17(1) of the Incomea-tax Act,
1961 .
(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - - -
saction 17{3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
Stock Option - - - -
Sweat Equity - - - -
Commission - - - -
-as % of
profit
- others, specify. ..
5. Others, please - - - - '
specity (Provident Fund}y '
Total - - - -

VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL
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Annexure " to Directors’ Report )

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

1. INTRODUCTION .

The Company conducts its operations under the directions of the Board of Directors within the framework laid
down by the Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of Association of the Company, Listing Agreement with stock
exchanges, internal code of conduct and policies formulated by the Company for its Board of Directors and
Senior Management. The Company's Board of Directors is dedicated to act in good faith, exercise their
judgment on an informed basis and in“thebest interest of the Caompany and its stakeholders. This policy is in-
compliance with the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereto and Clause 49 of
the Listing Agreement. -

The primary objective of the Policy is to provide a framework and set standards for their nomination;
remuneration and evaluation of the Dirsctors, Key Managerial Personnel and officials comprising the Senior )
Management. The Company aims lo achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills amongst its Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

The Nomination, Remuneration and Evaluation Policy (“the Policy") applies to the Board of Directors (“the
Board"), Key Managerial Personnel (the “KMP"} and the Senior Management Personne! of Hisar Spinning Mills
- Limited (the "Company™).

"Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means-

{i} Chairman & Managing Director

(i} Company Secretary

{iii} Whole- time Director

{iv} Chief Financial Officer; and

{v) Such other Officer as may be prescribed by the Board or the Central Government.

The expression “senior managemeni” means personnel of the company who are members of its core
management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the
executive directors, including the functional heads.

2 CONSTITUTION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE -

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be constituted by the Board of Directors in its Meeting. The
members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman or
appoint Chairman of the Committee. The Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the
Committee but shall not be a Chairman of the Committee. Minimum two members shall constitute a quorum for
the Committee Meeting. The terms of the Committee shall be decided by the Board of Directors in its meeting.
The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting
or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholder’s queries.

COMMITTEE MEMBER'S INTERESTS

a) A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a
meating or when his perforrnance is being evaluated.

b) The Commiltee may invite such execulives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the
Committee. '

VOTING

a) Matters arising for determination at the Committee Meetings shall be decided by a -majority shall be decided
by a majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a
decision of the Committee. )

b} In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.
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3. IERMS OF REFEREN F THE NOMINATION AND REMUNE ION COMMITTEE

I. identification of persons qualified to be the directors and in senior management in accordance with the criterin
laid down.

Il. Recommend to the Board appointed and removal of the directors apart from the nominee directors ay
proposed by the Government of Punjab and in the Senior Management.

lIl.Evaluation of every director’s performance.

{V. Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.

V. Recommendation of Remuneration policy for lhe directors, KMP and other employaes, .

V1. Other Terms of Reference/ scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be as notified by the
appropriate authority from time to time or as diracted by the Board of Directors of the Company from time {o
time.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

» Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
ieast annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporale strategy, with the ohjective to diversify the Board, ' .

« Identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the KMPs or in the Senior Management of the
Company; )

» Recommending to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

» Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration payable to the Diractors! KMPs/ Senlor Officlals
s0 appointed/ reappointed;

« Assessing the independence of Independent directors; .

» Such other key issuesimatters as may ba referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing
Agreement and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under;

« To make recommendations tq the Board conceming any matiers relating to the continuation In office of any
Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

« Ensure that level and cemposition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and fheels appropriate performance banchmarks;

» To devise a policy on Board diversity: L

« To devalop a succession plan for the Board and to regulary review the plan.

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

It shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall be supported by the Company Secretary to organize
the avaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to ba taken. The evaluation process will be
used constructively as a system lo improve the diractors’ and commitiess' eflectiveness, to maximize their
strength and to tackle their shartcomings.

The Board of-Directors shall undertake the following activities on an annual basis:

1. The Chairman of the Company shall meet with each and every director individually to discuss his/ her
performance throughout the year.

2. Review performance evaluation reports submitted by the Chairperson of varlous committees atong with their
suggestions on improving the eflectiveness of the committee. Also, the requirement of establishing any new
commiltees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

3.Review the various strategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance objectives for directors, in
consistency with varying nature and requirements of Company's business.

4. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyze its own performance during the year togather with
suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant 10 the performance objectives. H

In conformity with the requirements of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be
done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

6. RESPONSIBILITIES OF INDPENDENT DIRECTORS

In pursuance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed and notified there under read with lhe amendments
in the Lisling Agreement as notified on 17" April. 2014, the ambit of roles and responsibilities of Independent
Directors has widened. The following roles, responsibilities and duties have been duly incorporated so far:
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I. Limit on numbar of directorships

a. A person shall not serve as an independent director-in more than seven listed companies.

3. Further, any person who is serving as a whole time director in any listad company shall serve as an
independent direclor in nol more than thres listed companies,

2. Every independent director shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a director and
thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any change in the
vircumstances which may affect his stalus as an independent director, give a declaration that he mects the
critaria of independence.

3. Qualifications of independent director.- An independent director shall possess approprate skills,
2xperience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration,
sesearch, corporate governance, techiical operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business.

4. Guidelines of professional conduct:
An Independent director shall:

(a) uphold ethicai standards of integrity and probity;

(b) act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties;
{c} exarcise his respansibliities in a bona fide manner In the Interest of tha company;

(d} devote sufficient time and atlention lo his professional cbligations for informed and balanced decision
making;

[e} not allow any extraneous considerations that will vitiate his exercise of objective independent judgment in the
naramount interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting from the collective judgrment of
‘he Board in its decision making;

:f) not abuse his position 1o the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose of gaining direct
ar indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associated parson;

1g) refraln from any action that would lead to loss of his independenca:
th) where circumstances arise which make an independent director lose his independence, the independent
Jirector must immediataly inform the Board accordingly,

1i) assist the company In Implementing the best corporate govarnance practices.

5. Role and functions:

The independent dirgctors shall: ]

(a) help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations especially on issues of
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct;

(b} bring an cbjective view in the evaluation of the performance of board and management;

(c) scrutinise the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance;

(d) satisfy themselves on the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and the systems of risk
management are robust and defensible;

(e) safeguard the interests of all stakeholders, particularly the minority shareholders:

{f) balance the conflicting interest of the stakeholdears;

(g) determine appropriate leveals of remuneration of executive directors key managerial parsonnel and senior
management and have a prime role in appmnﬂng and whare necessary recomrnend removal of executive
directors, key managerial personnel and senior management;

{h) moderate and arbitrate In the interest of the company as a whole, In sltuations of conflict botween
management and shareholder’s inlerest. .

6. Duties:
The independent direclors shall;

(a) undertake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh their skills, knowledge and familiarity with
the company;

(b) seek appropriate clarification or ampm' ication of information and where necessary, take and (ollow
appropriate professional advice and opinion of outside experts al the expense of the company;

(¢) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committees of which he is a member;
{d) participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are chairmpersons or
members;

(e) strive to attend the general mestings of the company;
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() where they have concerns about the running of the company or a proposed action, ensure thal these are

addressed by the Board and, to the extent that they are not resolved, insist that their concerns are recorded in

the minutes of lhe Board meeling;

(g) keep themselves well informed about the company and the external environment In which it operates;

{h) not to untairty obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committes of the Board;

(i) pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are heid before approving related party

transactions and assure themselves that the same are in the intarest of the company,

(i) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequate and functional vigil mechanism and to ensure that

the interests of a person who uses such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such use.

(k) report concems about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’'s code of

conduct or athics policy;

(1) acting within his authority, asslst in protecting the legitimate interests of the company, shareholders and its

employees;

{(m} not disclose confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales
- promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disclosure is expressly approved by the
Board or required by law.

7. Saparate meetings:

{a) The independent directors of the company shall hold at least one mesting in a year, without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of management;

{b) All the independent directors of the company shall strive 1o ba present at such meeting;

{c) The meeting shall:

{i) review the perfarmance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

(ii) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of execulive
directors and non-executive direclors;

(i) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

8. Evaluation mechanism:

{a) The Nomination Committee shall tay down the evaluation criteria for performance evaluation of independent

directors.,
(b) The company shall disclose the critaria for performance evaluation, as laid.down by lhe Nomination

Committee, in its Annual Report.

{c) Tha performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated.

{d) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent director.

9. Training of Independent Directors

{a) The company shall provide suitable training to independent directors (o familiarize them with the company,
their roles, rights, respansibilities in the company, nature of lhe industry in which the company operates,
business model of the company, efc.

(b) The details of such training imparted shall be disclosed in the Annual Reportl.

7. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS! KMPs/ SENIOR OFFICIALS

1. Enhancing the competencies of the Board and attracting as well as retaining lalented employees for role
of KMP/ a level below KMP ara the basis for the Nominalion and Remuneration Committee io select a candidate
for appointment to the Board. When recommending a candidate for appointment {except for Nominee Directors},
the Nomination and Remuneration Commitlee has regard to: -

d assessing the appointee against a range of criteria which inctudes but not be limited to qualifications,
_skills, regional and industry experience, background and other qualities raquired lo operate success(ully in the
position, with due regard for the benefits from diversifying the Board,
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¥ the extent to which the appointee is likely 1o contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board, work
constructively with the existing directors and enhance.the efficiencies of the Company,
> the skills and experience that the appointee brings to the role of KMP/ Senior Official and how an
appointee will enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whole, .
. the nature of existing positions held by the appointea including directorships or other relationships and

the impact they may have on the appointea’s ability to exarcise independent judgment,

— Y

-

2. Personal Speclfications:

Degree holder in relevant disciplines,

Experience of management in a diverse organization,
Excellent interpersonal, communicalion and representational skills,
Demonstrable leadership skills

Commitment to high standards of ethics, perscnal ntegrity and probity,
Commitment to the promotion of equal opportunities, comm unity cohesion and
health and safety in the workplace,

Having continuous professional development to refresh knowledge and skills.

Yy vy yvyy

‘I’

For details of the parsonal specifications refer to Annexurs 1.
3. Lettara of Appointment:

Each Director/ KMP/ Senlor Officials is required to sign the letter of appointment with the Company containing
the terms of appointment and the role assigned in the Company.

4. Remuneration of Dlraétora. Koy Managerisl Personnasl and Senior Management: °

The remuneration package and compensation for Directors, KMPs and Senior Officials shall be determined as
per the service rules of the Company and the limits and statulory requirements as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

8. EVALUATION FACTORS:

The Board of Direclors shall pay regards to the following parameters for the purpose of evaluating the
performance of a particular director.

in respecl of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects have been provided to assist with the evalualion
process in respect of performance of independent directors, non- independent directors, other employees of the
Company and Commiltees of Directors separatety, 8s such, evaluation factors may vary in accordance with their
respective functions and duties. -

L4

Rating Scale

Scale Performance
5 Excellent
4 -
a
2
1

Good
Satisfactory
Needs Improvement
Unaccaptable

INDEPENDENT DHIRECTORS
Overall Rating

> Complirioe with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other laws
> Comphliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of the Company
Assistance in implementing Corporate Governance practices
Rendering independent, unbiased opinion

~ Altendance & presence in Genera! Meetings

Y ‘l’

¥
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Leadership Qualitles

Cualifications

Disclosure of non-independance, if exists

Independent view on key appointments & Strategy Formulation

Objective evaluation of Board's performance )

Review of integrity of financial information & risk management

Safeguard of stakeholders’ interasts

Appointment & Removal of KMPs

Determination of level of remuneration of KMPs

Updation of skills & knowledge ’

Punctuality

Information regarding external environmaent

Seeking expert opinion, when reqguired

Raising of concems to the Board

Safeguarding interest of whistie- blowers under Vigil Mechanism
Reporting of Frauds, violations etc. o

Team work attributes ,

Safeguard of confidential information

VY Y VY YYVVVYVVVYVVYVYVYVY

NON- INDPENDENT DIRECTORS! EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Oversl Rating

Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Act & other laws
Strategic Planning- Financial & Business

Monitoring performance against plans

Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct
Exercising duties diligently

Qualifications

Punctuality

Disclosure of Interest

Leadership skills

Motivaling employees, providing assistance & directions
Establishment of interna! control processes

Communication skills

Attendance & presence in mestings of Boerd & Committees
Attendance of General Meetings

Team work attributes

Maonitoring policies, encouraging suggestions

Safeguard of confidential information

VYV YYVYYVYYYVYYYYYYY

COMMITEE ARD
The Board has constituted the following commitiees:

1. Audit Committee
2. Nomination & Remuneration Commitiea
3. Stakeholder's Relationship Committea

For evaluating the performance of each committee, the Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following
aspocts:_ . .

Overall Rating

» Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other laws
» Compliance with ethical standards & Code of Conduct of the Compeny
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Committee's accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives

Adherence to Articles of Association, Companies Act and other applicable laws
Redressal of complaints & grievances '
Coordination with other committees and Board of Direclors
Fulfillment of roles & responsibilities

Adherence to Company's policies and internal procedures

AL LA T U T

9. REVIEW
Subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” reserves its
right to review and amend this policy, if required, to ascertain the appropriateness as per the needs of the

Company. The Policy may be amended by passing a resolution at a meeting of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and a subsequent approval by the Board of directors in their Board Meeting.

10. DISCLOSURE ]

In accordance with the requirement under the Act, disclosure regarding the manner in which the performance
evalualion has been done by the Board of Directors of ils own performance, performance of various committees
of Directors and individual directors' performance will be made by the Board of Directors in the Board's Report.
Further, the Board's Report containing such statement will be made available for the review of shareholders at
the General Meeting of the Company. ‘ '

Annexure- 1
Personal Specifications for Directors:
1.  Qualifications

> Degreo holder in rclovant disciplings (¢.g. management, accountancy, legal); or.
» Recognised specialist

2.  Experience

» Experience of management in a diverse organization .

» Experience in accounting and finance, administration, corporate  and strategic
planning or fund management

» Demonstrable ability to work effectively with a Board of Directors . -

3.  Skills : '

» Excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skills

» Demonstrable leadership skills

» Extensive team building and management skills

» Strong influencing and negotiating skills .

> Having continuous professional developrent to refresh knowledge and skills

4.  Abilities and Attributes

"> Commitment to high standards of ethics, persanal iﬁ,{ggrity and probity l
» Commitment to the promotion of equal,. opportunities, community cohesion and
health and safety in the workplace C A '

5.  Political inclinations and oplnions.
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“Meachanism for Performance Evaluation of Directors”
(Legal Framework) .

in the endeavour to safeguard the interest of public at large, the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) provides that
the performance of the Board of Directors of Listed Companies and prescribed class. of companies must be
reviewed regularly against appropriate measures. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of a Company has been obliged under Section 178 of the Act to formulate a draft policy for
recommending it to the Board of Directors of the Company, setting the criteria, based on which the performance
of each and every director including the performance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by the Board of
Diractors of the Company. Based on such performance evalualion, remuneralion of directors, KMPs and
employeas shall be determined. Such en evaluation procedure will provide a fine system of checks and balances
on the performance of the Directors and will ensure that they exercisa their powers in a raticnal manner.
Relevant extracis of Section 178 of the Act reads as:

Section 178 mpanies 2013

(1) The Board of Diractors of every tisted company and such other class or classes of companies, as may be
prescribed shall constitule the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of three or more non-
exsculive directors out of which not less than one-half shall ba independenl directors!

Provided that the chairperson of the company (whether execulive ar non-executive) may be appointed as a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.

{2) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 'shall identify persons who are gualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in senlor management i accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal and shall camy out evaluation of every director's performance.

{3) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managesial personnel and cther empioyees.

(4) Tho Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy under sub-section (3)
aensure that—

{a) the level and composilion of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors
of the quality required to run the company successiully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performanca is clear and meats appropriate performance benchmarks; and
(¢) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goats: - :

Providad that such policy shall be disclosed in the Board's report.

(5) The Board of Directors of a company which consists of more than one thousand shareholders, debanture-
holders, deposit-holders and any other sacurity hoiders at any time during a financial yaar shall constitute s
Siakeholders Realationship Committee consisting of a chairperson who shall be a non-axecutive director and
such other members as may be decided by the Board.

{6) The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of
the company. _ .

{7) The chairperson of each of the committees constituted under this section or, in his absenca, any other
mermber of the committee authorised by him in this beha!f shall attend the general meetings of the company.

(8) In case of any contravention of the provisions of section 177 and this saction, the company shall be
punishable with fine which shall not be less than one lakh rupess but which may extend 10 fiva lakh rupees and
every officer of the company who is in default shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may
extend to one year or with fine which shall not be less than twenty-five thousand rupees but which may extend to
one takh rupees, or with both:

Provided that non-consideration of resohtion of any grievance by the Stakeholders Relationship Commitlee in
good faith shall not constitute & contravention of this s‘.ectlon. :

Explanation.—The expression “senior rmanagement” means personnel of the company who are members of its
core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of managemant-one level balow
the executive directors, including the functional heads. -

As par Rute § of Companias {Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of following
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classes of Companiés shall conslilute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Committees of the Board.- The Board of directors of every listed companies and the following classes of
companies shalt constitute an Audlt Committee and a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board-

(i} all public companies with a paid up capital of ten crore n:pees or more; ’

{ii} alt public companies having tumover of one hundred crore rupees or more;

(i)} all public companies, having in aggregate. outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or deposits

exceeding ity crore rupees or more. ,

Explanation.- The paid up share capital or turnover or outstanding loans, or borro'wings or debeniures or
deposits, as the case may be, as exisling on the date of last audited Financial Statements shall be taken into
account for the purposes of this rule. - ;

The Act, undler Clause VIl of schedule IV, casts an obligation on the part of the Board of Directors for evaluating
the performance of Independent directors. All the Directors on the Board of a Company, except the independent
director whose performance is being evaluated, will assess the performance of Independent director.
Accordingly, a report of performance evaluation of each independent director of the Company would be
prepared, which would determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the concerned
independent director or not.

, SCHEDULE Iv
. [See saction 149(8))
CODE FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Code is a guide lo professional canduct for independent directors. Adherence. to ihese standards by
independent directors and fulfilment of their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner will promote
confidence of the investment communlty, particulady minority shareholiders, regulators and companies In the
institution of independent directors, . .y

l. Guidelines of professional conduct:
An independent director shall: .

(1) uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; .

(2) act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties;

{3) exercise his responsibililies in a bona fide manner in the interest of tha company,;

(4) devote sufficient ime and aftention lo his professional obligations for informed and balanced decision
making; . -

(5) not allow any extraneous considerations that will vitiate his exercise of objective independent judgment in the
paramount interest of the company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting from the collective judgment of
the Board In its decision making; , .

{6) not abuse his position to the detriment of the company or its shareholders or for the purpose of galning direct
or indirect personal advantaga or advantage for any associated person;

(7) refrain from any action that would iead to loss of his independence;

{8) where circumstances arise which make an independent director lose his independence, the independent
director must immediately inform the Board accordingly; ’

(8) assist tha company in implemenling the basl corporate governance practices.

Il. Role and functions:
The independent directors shall:

(1) help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on tha Board's deliberations especially on Issues of
strategy, performance, risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct; .

(2} bring an objective view in the avaluation of the performance of board and managament; .

(3) scrutinise the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance; ) &'

{4) satisfy themsalves on the integrity of financial information and that financial controls and the systams of risk
management are robust and defensibla;

44




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

{5) safeguard the interests of all stakeholders, particularly the minority shareholders;

(6) balance the conflicting interest of the siakeholders;

l (7) determine appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, key managerial personnel end senior
management and have a prime role In appolinting and where necessary recommend removal of executive

directors, key managerial personnel and senior managasment;

{(8) moderate and arbitrate in the interest of the company as a whole, in situations of conflict between

management and shareholder’s interest. ’

. Duties:

The independent diraciors shall :

(1) undertake appropriate induction and regulary update and refresh their skills, knowtadge and familiarity wilh
the company,

(2) seek appropriate clarification or amplification of information and, where necessary, take and -follow
appropriate professional advice and opinion of outside experts at the expense of the company;

(3) strive to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committees of which he is a member;
(4) participate constructively and activety in the committees of the Board in which they are chalrpersons or
members;

(5) strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

(6) whare they have concems about tha running of the company or a proposed action, ensure that these are
addressed by the Board and, to the extent that they are not rasolved, insist lhat their concerns are recorded in
the minutes of the Board meeting;

(7) keep themselves well informed about tha company and the exiemal environmenl in which it operates;

(8) not to unfairy obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board os committee of the Board;

(9} pay sufficient attention and ensurc that adequate deliberations are held before approving related party
transactions and assure themselves that the same are in the Interest of the company,;

{10) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequste and functional vigil mechanism and to ensure that
the Interasts of a person who uses such mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such use;

(11) report concemns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of
conduct or ethics policy, )

{12} acting within his authority, assist in protecting the legitimate interests of the company, shareholders and its
amployees;

(13) not disclose comidential information, including commercial secrets, technalogies, advertising and sales
promotion plans, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disclosure is expressly approved by the
P Board or required by law. :

V. Manner of appointment:

r (1) Appointment process of independent directors shall be Independent of the company management: while
selecting independent directors the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate balance of skills, experience and
knowledge in the Board so as to enable the Board to discharga its functions and duties effectively.

(2) The appointment of independent director(s) of the company shall be approved at the meeting of the
shareholders. .

(3) The expianatory statement attached to the notice of the meeting for approving the appointment of
independent director shall include a statemmant that in the opinion of the Board, the independent director
proposed to be appoinied fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under and that the
proposed director is independent of the management.

(4) The appointment of ‘Independant directors shall be formalised through a letter of appoiniment, which shall sat
out :

{a) the term of appointment;

(b) the expectation of the Board from the appointed director; the Board-level committee(s) in which the director is
expected to serve and its tasks; ]

{c) the fiduclary duties that come with such an appointment along with asccompanying liabilities;

(d) provision for Directors and Cfficers (D and O) insurance, if any;

(o) the Code of Business Ethics that the company expects its diractors and employees to follow:; -
{f) the list of actions that a director should not do while functioning as such in the company, ard

(g) the ramuneration, mantioning pariodic fees, reimbursernant of axpenses for participation in the Boards and
olher meetings and profit related commission, if any. )
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{5) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall be open for inspection at the
registered office of the company by any member during normal business hours.

{6} The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall also be posted on the company’s
website.

V. Re-appointment:
The re-appointment of independent dirsctor shall be on the basis of repert of performance evaluation.
VI, Resignation or removal:

(1) The resignation or removal of an independent director shall be in the same manner as is provided in sections
168 and 169 of the Act.

(2) An independent director who resigns or is removed from the Board of the company shall be replaced by a
new independent director within a period of not more than one hundred and eighty days from the date of such
resignation or removal, as the case may be. ' .
(3) Where the company fulfils the requirement of independent directors in its Board even without filing the
vacancy created by such resignation or removal, as the case may be, the requirement of replacement by a new
independent director shall not apply. .

VIl. Separate meetings:

(1) The independent directors of the company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of management; '

(2) All the independent directors of the company shall strive to be present at such meeting;

{3) The meeting shall:

(a) review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole:

(b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors;

(c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company management and the
Board that is necessary for the Board to eflectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Vill. Evaluation mechanism:

(1) The performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors,
excluding the director being evaluated.

{2) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent director. :
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Annexure 'S5’ to Directors' Report

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
BACKGROUND

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Equily lisling agreement and SEBI Circular No. CIRICFD/POLICY/ CELL/272014
dated 17 April, 2014 and subsequently amended by Circular No. CIR/CFO/POLICY/CELL/7/2014 on 15
September, 2014, every listed company, except the companies having share capital not exceeding Rs. 10 Crore
and Net Worth not exceeding of Rs. 25 Crora as on the last date of previous financial year and the companies
listed exclusively on the SME and SME-ITP platforms, shall constitute Risk Management Commiltee for risk
assessment and minimization thereof,

This document is Intended to formalize a risk management policy, the objective of which shall-be identification,
evaluating, monitoring and minimizing identifiable risks.

OBJECTIVE AND PURPOSE OF POLICY

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stabilily and to promole a pro-
active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to achieve the
key objeclive, the policy eslablishes a structured and disciplined approach o risk management, in order to guide
decisions on risk related issues.

The specific objectives of the Risk Management Policy are:

1. To ensure that ait the current and future material risk expcsures of the company are identified, assessed,
quantified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed i.e. to ensure adequate systems for risk
management. .

2. To establish a framework for the company’s risk management process and lo ensure its implementation.

3. To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable, through the adoption of best
. practices,

. 4. To assure business growth financial stability.

IMPLEMENTATION

This policy is In compliance with the amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement (w.e.f. 1™ October, 2014)
which requires the Company io lay down procedure for risk assessment and procedure for risk minimization.

IDENTIFICATION OF RISKS

Risk can minimize only after the ilentification, or wa can say unkess we identified the risk, it cannot be
minimized. So the first moto of the Risk management Policy is to identify the risks.

In Hisar Spinning Mills Limited, risk can be identified by any director, employee, shareholders, debtors, creditors,
bankers, connected agencies. They can report the identified risks to the concermed department. Immediately
after the reporting of the risks, departmental head and entire team of the department shall accumulate the
information pertaining to the identified risks and evatuate the risks.

KIND OF RISKS
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The risks can be further categorized as
{a) Minimal
(b) Modarats
{c) Extreme

Priority should be given to the extreme risks, which will be more dangerous and the company will have short time
to overcome/minimize the said risks.

MANAGEMENT OF THE RISKS

All the risks should be reported to the departmental heads and thay will further intimate to the Risk Management
Committee. In extreme cases all the concermned department head will report immediately to any member of Risk
Managemeant Committee for further consideration of Audit Committee and Board of Diractors. Tha Risk
Management Committee constituted under this policy Is defined in later part of the policy.

The Board of Directors will consider the risk reported by the Risk Management Commitiee and the Audit
commitiee of the company. The management will take the necessary action on the reporied risk and will do the
bast for minimization of the risks. "

CONSTITUTION OF RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Tha risk management committee consists of the following officlals of the company:
1. Mr. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director

2. Mr. Vikas Gupta, Non Executive Independent Diractor.

3. Mr. Sharad Goel, Chief Financlal Officer

The Risk Management Committee or any members of the committee will consider the malter reported by the
concerned depariment heads and the Risk Management Commitlee and their members can own identify the
risks and will advice to the management to minimize risk.

The Risk Management Committee can meat any numbaer of tlimas for considaeration and providing the correctiva
action of fisks to the.management. - - .

APPLICATION
This policy applies to all areas of the Company's operations.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board will undertake the following actions to ensure risk is managed appropriately:

1. The Board shall be responsibie for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan for the
company.

2. The Board shail dsfine the roles and responsibilities of the Risk Managemant Committes and may delegate
monitoring and reviewing of the risk management plan to the Committee and such other functions as it may
deem fit.

3. Ensure that the appropriate systermns for risk management ara in place.

4. The indepandent directors shall help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations
on issues of risk management ond satisly themselves thal the systems of risk management are robusl and
dafansible.

5. Participate in major decisions affecting the organization's risk profile.

6. Have an awareness of and continually monitor the managament of strategic rsks

7. Ba satisfied that processes and controls are in place for managing less significant rsks.

&. Be satisfied that an appropriale accountabllity framework is working whereby any delegation of risk is
documented and performance can be monitor accordingly.

9. Ensure risk mansgement s integrated into Board reporting end annual reporting mechenisms.

10. Convene any Board-Committees that are deemed necessary lo ensure risk is adequalely managed and
resolved where possible. '

AMENDMENTS :

Any subsequent amendments/modification in the listing agreement and/or alher applicable laws in this regard
shall automatically apply to this policy. This policy can be amended any time by the Board of Directors of the
company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDIAN COTTON & TEXTILE INDUS"TRIES

India is the world's second largest producer of texliles and garments, with a massive and diverse raw material
base. It is the second largest sector in the country after agriculiure in terms of employment and provides direct
employment to over 45 million peopla. Basidas, anothar 60 million people are engaged in allied activities. Due to
this, Indian Textile Industry is not only of paramount importance to the national economny, it also has an influentiat
presence in global markel. The Indian textile industry is set for strong growth, followed by bolh strang domestic
consumplion as well as export demand. Indian textiles industry has a strong presence across the value chain.
India is the 4th largest exporter of textiles & clothing products to the world. Tha domestic textile and apparel
industry in India is estimated to reach US$ 141 billion by 2021as per CII.

COTTON SCENARIO DURING THE YEAR LUUNDER REVIEW

Cotton is the main cash crops in India. During the cotton year 2014-2015, the Indian cotton crop production as
astimated by the Cottan Advisory Board is to be about 390 lac bales as against 417 lac bales during the cotton
year 2013-14. During the year, China changed its cotton policy due to which World cotton prices starting
declining since April 2014 which also affecled the domestic cotlon prices. Cotton Corporation of India (CCI) had
to undertake MSP operations and procured substantial cotton estimated to be around 8.7 million bales which is
equivalent to 22% of the domestic cotton production. The outlook on the Indian cotton spinning industry remains
Stabie on account of recovery in the export demand and production volumes since Novembar 2014.

IMPACT OF BUDGET 2015-2016 ON TEXTILE INDUSTRIES

The Indian texiile industry was haping for some good schemes as well as favourable incentives from the budget
for achieving its high potential for increasing Industrial production, generating additional employment and
improving export eamings. But tha Union Budget 2015-2016 is not s0 much encouraging for textile industries.
The Budget has ignored the highly labour intensive textile industry which has significant potential for growth. The
allocation for Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme had been reduced to Rs.4.520 crore for 2015-18 from
Rs.1,884 crore allocated for 2014-15, This may turn to have adverse affect on fresh investments. No reduction in
the duty burden has been provided for manmade fibres and tharefore industry's plans for diversification may be
hampered. In fact, the sffactive rate of excise duty on manmada fibres has gone up from 12.36% to 12.5% under
the current budget. Increase in servica tax to 14% will also hava an adverse impact on the textite industry. The
only positive aspect of the Budget for the textile sector is the cantinuation of the optional excise duty regime.
Although the reduction of Corporate Tax from 30% to 25%, is indeed a welcome step for all industries.

FUTURE QUTLOOK

Tha new government at the Cenire appears to be pro-investment and many new policies and planned policy
changes are expecled to provide a boost to the business environment in the country. With a stable government,
the business sentiments in the country have improved substantially. it is expected that this shall drive investment
and furither growth in the textile industry as well.

The fundamental strength of your Con‘apany flows from its strong production base of wide range of yamns from
natural fibres like cotton, silk and synthetic /man-made fibres like potyester, viscose & nylon etc.. The Company
has a robust framework for providing quality products at competitive prices by ensuring proper timeline.’

AL CONT SYS

A strong intemal control is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framework of internal
control in all areas of its operations, including suitable moniloring procedures, compelent and qualilied
personnel. The Intemal Audit deparimenl also assesses the opportunities for improvement in business
proceases, systems and controls, provides recommendations, designad to add value to the Company. In addition
to statutory audit, the financial controls of the Company at various locations are raviewed by the Intemal
Auditors, who report their findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee actively reviews the
adequacy and efloctiveness of internal control sysiem and suggests furthering strengthening the same, -if so
required. The Comniittee meets to review the progress of the internal audil initintives, significanl audit
observations, planning and implementation of follow up action required. The Company conducts its business with
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integrity and high standard ol othical behaviour and in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations that
govern ils business. i

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES

Being an equal employment opportunity company and to ensure that every emptoyee of the Company is treated
with dignity & respect and as mandated under "The Saxual Harassment of Women at Workplace {(Pravention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the Company has in place a formal policy for Prevention of Sexual
Harrassment of Employees at Workplace. The Management of the Company has alse constituted Internal
Complaint Committees at its workplaces to consider and redrass the complaints of Sexual Harrassment. During
the year F.Y, 2014-15, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company firmly beliaves that to ensure effective risk management, there ocught to be risk management
plans to handle the risks based on the priorities and challenges of the business. The faclors involved in Identifled
risks must be considered and the accuracy of assessment is very important. This implies, if proper risk
managemenl is implemented as a best practice then massive capital losses can be prevenied. Following the
same approach and as required under Companies Act & Listing Agreement, the Company has constituled Risk
Management Commiltee and adopted an effective Risk Management Policy in its place to assess, mitigate and
to monitor the different risks exposed to the industry in which the Company operates. The Committee on a
quariery basis provides stalus updatas to the Board of Directors of the Company.

HEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

The Company has health and workplace safety programmes in place and has established policies and
procedures aimed at ensuring compliance with applicable lawsflegislative requirements. The Company believes
that the health and safety of the workers and the persons residing in the vicinity of its plants is fundamental to
the business. Commitment to the identification and elimination or control of the workplace hazards for protection
of all is utmost imporiance.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The permanent employee strength of Company as on 31 March 2015 was Twenty Seven. The Company
recognizes the importanca and contribution of its human resources for its growth and development and is
committed to the development of its people. The Company has been adopting methods and practices for Human
Resources developmenl. With ulmest respect to human values, the Company continues lo develop its human
resources, through appropriate trainings, workshops, motivationfleadership techniques and employea welfare
activities at regular inlervals.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements mada in this report describing the Company’s projactions, estimates, expectations or predictions may
be ‘forward looking predictions’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual rasult
may differ from such eslimates, projections, etc. whether expressed or implied. Factors which would make a
significant difference to the Company’s operations include availability of quality raw cotton, markat prices in the
domestic and overseas markets, changes in Government regulstions and tax laws, economic conditions
affecting demand / supplies and cther environmental

tactors over which the Company does not have any control

N b
t

By ordaer of tha Board

!

Place: Chandigarh K {(Gopal Krishan Gupta)

Dated: September 04, 2015 . Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN-00192985
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (“the
Company®), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2. The Comgany's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibifity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other imeqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
3. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards an Auditing specified under Section 143 (10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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8. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls |
system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls, An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reascnableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Opinion 1

8. In our opinion and to the best of our inforrnation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: . . a 1

{a) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our 1
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement deatt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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(e) On the basis of the written rep
taken an record by the Board o

resentations received from the _directo_rs as on 31st March, 2015
f Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,

2015 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the other matters t
of the Companies (Audit and Au
information and according to the explanations given to us:

o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
ditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

i.” The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Hisar
Date : 30.05.2015
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for JAIN & ANIL SOOD
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn No. 010505N

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
. Partner
Membership No. 088447
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5.

6.

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditor's Reporl of even date to the members of Hisar
Spinning Miils Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2015).

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Cempany has a program for the physical veﬁtication of fixed assets at periodic intervats. In our”
opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its fixed assets. No significant discrepancies were noliced on such verification,

{a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the manaégment. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable
and adequats in ralation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(c) On the basis of our examination of ‘the records of Inventory, we are of the opinion that the
Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stocks and the book records were not material.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, paragraph 3(iil) of.the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an adequate
internal controi*syslem commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business, for
the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. The activities of the Company do
not invoive the sale of services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any continuing
failure to correct major weaknesses in intemal control system.

The Company has not a-ccepted any deposits from the pubilic.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 1 48(1) of
the Act, for any of the products of the Company.

(a) The Company is generally regutar in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities, though there has been slight delay in few cases. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2015 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty
of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund. Thus, paragraph 3(vii){c) of the Order is not applicable.
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8. The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not
incurred cash losses In the financial year and in the immediately preceding financlal year.

9. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank. The Company
did not have any outstanding debentures during the year.

10. The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions. _

41. The Company has not obtained any fresh term loan during the year under consideration. Hence,
comments under paragraph 3(xi} of the Order ara not called for.

12. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to
us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

for JAIN & ANIL SCOD
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn No. 010505N

" (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)

Place: Hisar Partner
Date : 30.00.2015 Membership No, 088447
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Balance Sheot as at 31st March 2015

In¥

Particulars Note No, As at 31.03.2015 As at 31.03.2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
(a) Share capital 3 43850000 43850000
{b} Reserves and surplus 4 21232518° 65082518 13345757 57195757
Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 5 17295661 23789834
Curregt liabilities
(a) Short-term borrowings 3] 58684557 4422122
(b) Trade payables 7 3890487 3660171
{c) Other current liabilities 8 10562455 20317498 11580894 19863187
Total 102695678 100648778
ASSETS
MHon-current assets
{a) Fixed assets 9

(i) Tangible assets 29458242 41976797

{ii) Capital work-in-progress 3824017 -
{b} Deferred tax assets (net) 10 3235187 1045974
{c) Long-term loans and advances 11 7132244 1671657
(d) Other non-current assets. 12 2844974 46494584 2745609 47440037
Current assets
{a) Inventories - 7 13 4743714 TTTTTTTT T TTTT 38520048 T 0 T T
{b) Trade receivables 14 6311182 7263899
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 15 13066917 4223534
(d} Short-term loans and advances 16 377949 1018694
(@) Other current assets 17 1701252 56201014 2182568 53208741
Total 102695678 100648778
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date
for JAIN & ANIL SO0OD
Charntered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 010505N

Place: Hisar
Date : 30.05.2015

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Partner
Membership No. 088447

{SHARAD GOEL)
Chief Financial Officer

{TANU SHARMA)
Company Secretary
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for and on behalf of the Board

{(GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (T.N. GOEL)
Managing Director Directo
DIN: 00192985 DIN: 0019310

(ANURAG GUPTA)
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00192888
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the yoar ended 31st March 2016 - . Lo L e
InT
Particulars " Note No. For the year - For tho year - -
ended 31.03.2015 snded 31.03.2014 -

REVENUE .
Revenue from operations - 18 239216185 210871370
Other income = . 15 - : . 1262977 765696,
Total rovenuo . 240479182 241637068
EXPENSES ) T ‘ A
Cost of materials consumed 20 157134214 129576332
(-} Increasef decrease in inventories 21 564779 .. . .,8100418
Employee benefits expense ) 22 3075203 ’ " 2341031
Finance costa ] 23 2831478 3438385
Depreciation 24 13453257, 111084609
Other expenses 25 53116461 45456598
Total expenses 230175482 ) 197977373
Profit befora tax ; 10303680 - .. 13639€9
Less: tax expense. h - '
{1) Current tax 45806132 2732997

t ass: Mat credit entitlemant 0 -163978

Neat current tax 4606132 2896973 .

(2) Defarred tax ) -2188213 2416919 -12089950 ° 1687023
Profit for the period . 7886761 - 14972670
Eamings per aequity share ({EPS): 26
(Nominal value of equity share - T 10/-) 1
Basic EPS (T) L 211 - 3.21
Diksted EPS (X) 2.11 a2
Significant accountiiig policies : o 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. L

" As per our aftached report of even date ”
for JAIN & ANIL SO0D .
Chartared Accountants {or and on behalf of the Board

Firm Registration No. 010505N _ Tt T T "

Place: Hisar . (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)-  (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (T.N..GOEL]

Date ; 30.05.2015 . Partner Managing Director Director

Membership No, 088447 DIN: 00192985 DIN: 00183103

(SHARAD GOEL) . {TANU SHARMA) (ANURAG GUPTA)
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer

- ' o ' DIN: 00192888
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Ce h Iow Statement for the year ended J1st March 2015L Cay m;.; |
o

B o . inT
Particulars 1., apetnneetng For the For the
) yearended year ended
e raabrens n 31.03.2015  31.03.2014
A Cash flow from operating activities
Fl“' Hrﬂli' . T IO
Prof't before extraordinary items and tax 10303680 13659693
B LA YAl Bromepym
"' " Adjustments for: OO -
;u 3 Deprec;ation [e] iy ' 13453257 11064609
R ‘Unreal:sed foreign exchange'losses -22318 22318
¥ inter8stincome  tITHCY 4029326 -527342
< Interest expense TP 2504313 3403966

rhnpanny

Operatmg profit before extraordmary items and working capital 25209606 27623244
changes ;renngq

Im'" 13

------

0¥ Decreasel (- ) increase in trade receivables 975035 -1689339
Decreasel (-} increase in inventories 3776334 -232554
Decrease/ (-) increase in loans and advances and other assets . -3869078 4524673

:; :_ Increase/ {-) decrease in frade payables and other liabilities -223242 1354620
Cash generation from operation before extraordmary item 25868655 31580644
Direct taxes paid 4559715 -3127948
Net cash flow from/ {-) used in operating activities . 21308940 28452696

Coal

B. Cash flow from mvesting activities

() Purchase of tangible fixed assets (including capital work-in-progress) 4758719 4181071
(-} Increase/ decrease in current term deposits with bank having less than = -12900000 -

12 months maturity at the year end (term deposit receipt pledged with bank

towards margin money against letter of credit)

Interest received 414094 310606

Net cash flow from/ (-) used in investing activities AT2644625  -3870465
58




[ - - —_ =

! HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

e

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Interest paid

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts

Cash on hand

(AS) - 3 Cash Flow Statement.

As per our attached report of even date

for JAIN & ANIL SO0OD

(SHARAD GOEL})
. Chief Financial Officer .

Proceeds from /(-) repayment of long-term borrowings -
P Proceeds from /(-} repayment of short-term borrowings

] Net cash flow from/ {-) used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Balancas with banks in term deposit accounts

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 010505N

Place: Hisar (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Date : 30.05.2015 Partner
1\ Membership No. 088447

7024007 . 13689449
1442435 - -3081903
2530270 -3725728

8120932  -20497080

Net increase! (-) decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4056617 4085151

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4223534 138383

166917 4223534

32447 = 221796
. 3775000
134470 - 226738

166917 4223534

Note: The cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘indirect method" as set out in Accounting Standard

for and on behalf of the Board

(GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (T.N. GOEL)
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00192885  DIN: 00193103

(TANU SHARMA)
Company Secretary

{ANURAG GUPTA)
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00192888
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Notes to financial statements for the year anded 31st March 2015 3

1. Corporate Identification number and nature of operations
Corporate identification number of the company is L17112HR1992PLC031621 and the company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of cotton blended yam.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b}

(c)

{d)

Basis of preparation _ [

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India and comply
with the accounting standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Compantes Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operaling cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current — non current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financia! statements
and the results of operations during the reporling year end. Although these estimates are based
upon management's best-knowledge of current-events-and-actionsractuat-results-could-differ-from
these estimates. ’

Revenue racognition .

Revenue from sale of manufactured goods and sale of waste is recognised on transfer of all
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer which coincides with dispatch of goods to
the customers. Revenue from sale of manufactured goods and sale of waste is disclosed net of
returns, if any. ’ '-

Employse benefits

{i) Short-term employee beneafits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the
statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

{ii) Defined contribution plan - provident fund and pension fund

The contribution to provident fund and pension fung are considered as defined contribution plans
and are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they fall due, based on the amount of
contribution required to be made.

(iii) Compensated absences

Based on the leave rules of the company, employees ars not permitted to accumulate leave. Any
unavailed privileged leave to the extent encashable is paid to the employees and charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the year.
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(9)

~

(iv) Defined benafit plan - gratuity . i

Liability for gratuity is provided through a policy taken from Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) by a trust formed for the purpose. The net present value of obligation towards gratuity to
employees is acgtuarially delermined as at the balance sheet date based on the Projected Unit
Credil (PUC) Actuarial Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profil
and loss for the year.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price including duties and taxes (olher than those subsequently
recoverable by the company from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. When assets are sold or discarded
thair cost and accumulated depreciation are remaved from the accounts and any gain or loss
resulling from their disposal is included in the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assels outstanding at the balance sheet date are
disclosed as 'Capital advances' under the note of ‘Long-lerm loans and advances’ and the cost of
fixed assets not ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-in-
progress’.

Depreciation .
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on wrilten down value method over the
estimated useful life of assets. With effect from 1st April, 2014, the Company depreciates its lixed
assets over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule Ul to the Companies Act, 2013 as
against the earlier practice of depreciating at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the
Companies-Act, 1956,

Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/ discardment of assets, is calculated pro rata from
the date of such addition or upto the date of such sale/ discardment, as the case may be.

impairmant of assets .
Al sach bailance sheet date an assessment is made whather any indication exists that an asset
has been impaired. If any such indication exists, an impairment !oss.i.e., the amount by which the

]
[T

{h)

: 'ce_:[_ryi\rg\g amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount is provided in the books of account.

.
Inventaries )
Inventories {other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
However, raw materials and other items held for usa in the production of inventories are not written
down below cost if the finished products in which thay will be incorporated are expected to be sold
at or above cost. The cost in respect of various items of invlentory is computed as under’:

- in case of raw matarial, stores and spares, diesel and packing materal at first-in-first-out (FIFO)
cost method plus direct expenses.

- in case of work-in-progress at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus
appropriate portion of conversion cost and other overheads incusred depending upon the stage of
completion.

- in case of finished goods at raw materiél cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus conversion
cosl, packing cost and other overheads incurred to bring the goods up to their present condition
and location. i

-

Saleable waste has been valued at estimated net realisabte value!
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(i) Effects of change in foreign exchange rates - ]
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at
the date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date foreign currency monetary items are
reported using the closing rate. Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items
at rates different from those al which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in which they
arnse.

() Government grants
Government grants related to revenue have been deducied from related expense which they are
intended to compensate. Government grants of the nature of promoters' contribution have been
credited to Capital Reserve.

(k} Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily
substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the statement of profit and ioss.

(I} Tax expense .

Tax expense comprises current and delerred tax. Provision for current tax is made in accordance
with the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from Uming differences
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or mare subsequent periods is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are
enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will
e-available sgainst which such deferred tax assets can be realised. However, deferred tax assets
arising on account of brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation are recognised only
when there is virtua! certainty supported by convincing evidence that_sufficlent future taxable
income will be available agalnst which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during specified period. Inthe
year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance with the
recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss
and shown as MAT credit entitiement. The company reviews the same at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer
convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal Income Tax dunng the spaecific
period.

{m) Segment reportlng
The company operates only in one business segment viz., 'yam' which is the reportable segment
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) - 17 'Segment Reporting'
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

(n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there
is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financia! statements, |
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in%
Asat - As at
; - ‘ 31.63.2015 31.03.2014
3. Share capital
SN Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
«~ Authorised -
Equity shares of T 10/~ each 8000000 80000000  600000Q  B00ODO0OO
] Preference shares of % 10- each 2000000 20000000 2090000 20000000
Total - 100000000 160000000
issued
Equity shares of T 10/- each 3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000
5% Redeemable non cumulative preference sh;lres of T10- 650000 6500000 650000 6500000
each
Total 43850000 43850000
Subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of ¥ 1V each 3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000
} 5% Redeemable non cumudalive preference shaes of ¥ 10 650000 6500000 650000 6500000
each .
Total 43850000 43850000

| Equity shares of ¥ 10V- each:

-

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding ai the beginiting and at the end of the reporting period.
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Particulars Numbes of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Numbes of shares and amount at the beginning 3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000
Add : Skares issued - - - -
|f Number of shares and amount at the end _ 3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000
] 5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 1(V- each:
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Number of shares and amount at the beginning 650000 6500000 650000 6500000
Add : Shares issued - - - -
Number of shares and amount at the end 650000 6500000 650000 6500000
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As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:
Equity ghares; The company has one class of equity shara having par value of T 10/- per share. Every membar holding
equity shares and enlitied to vole and present in person or by proxy shall have woling rights which shall be in the same
proportion as the capital paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid up or partly paid up) held by him baars (o
the total paid up equity capital of the company.

-Preference shares: The company has issued 5% redeemable non cumulalive preference shares having par value of T
10/~ per share, The preference shareholders enjoy preferential rights in respect of payment of dividend and repayment of
capital-over the equity sharehoklers. The preference shares shall not entitle the holders thereof to any voting rights,
excapt in raspect of resolutions which diractly affect the rights attached to the preferences shares, and in the event the

' company does nol pay any dividend on the said preference shares no voting rights shall accrue to such holders on
account of non-payment of dividend. The said preference sharas will be redeemabla at par st the discretion of the board
aither in lump sum or in four quartery instalments commencing from 01.01.2024 and ending on 31.12.2024 but before
the expiry of 20 years [rom the dale of allotment (27.07.2005) subjecl to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1958 and
other applicable legislations as may be in force from lime 1o time and the provisions of the articles of association of the
company.,

Shares tn the compagy held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

Name of the sharehclder Number of % held ™ Number of % held
_ shares shares
‘Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each: - - - -
5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 10/- each:
Gopal Krishan Gupta . 110000 18.92 110000 18.92
M.L. Kansal 70000 10.77 70000 1077
Saran Pal Singh - - 70000 10.77
Kuldeep Kaur ’ - - 40000 " B.15
Nikhil Goel 132000 20.34 132000 20.31
Bindu Goel 92000 - 1415 92000 14.15
Anurag Gupta 55000 8,48 - -
Anuj Gupta . . 55000 8.46 - -
i
*
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in?
As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

4. Reserves and surplus

Capital reserves

As at the commencement of the year ’ 3342000 3342000

Add: recaipt during the year - 3342000 - 3342000

Surplus is. balance in statement of profit and loss

As al the commencement of the year 10003757 -1968913

Add: Profit for the yeermperﬂmstatemdmoﬁtwbss 7886781 17890518 11972870 10003757

Total . . 21232518 13345757
5. Long-term borrowings

Secured {*) :

Tem loan from bank ' a 388449

Tesm loans from financial institution 16600000 21930000

Other long-term bomowings froen banks 695661 17295661 1471385 23789824

Total ) 17295661 25789834

(*) Nature of security and guarantse by directors or others:

Term loan from bank:

Term loans from bank ie., Punjab Nationsl Bank are secured by (a) hypothecation of building constructed/ to be
construcied, plant and machinery installed up to 31.03.2011, other assets and equipments purchased with the bank loan
along with fumiture & fixture. (b) first charge ranking paripassu with Smal Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI)
bywayofeqmahlamtgaoeofanmemmablemupaﬂmi.e.,land&mildmmeteonofmecompmysnuatedat
Vmoaua.obu.mr.mmasumumnuwMmhaomwdbymempany.mmmdﬁesamabo
heldasmxﬂyfnrlommyﬁ:leond«nmd(mshaodﬂ)ﬁmPunjabNaﬁmaiBart(mfernotsno.s'Short-tenn
borrowings ).

Tmmmml.a..WNam&Mmmmmenmdmmdmd
the company namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta and Sh. TN, Goel and by Sh. M.L Kansal, promaoter

of the company.

Term loans from financial institution:

Term loans from financial institution i.e., Smail Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) together with interest,
m.m.mimmwmmdmamwmemmmmby(a)ﬂrstchameby
way of hypothecation in favour of SID8I in a form satistactory to SIDBI in respect of all the movable fixed assets ie.,
ptant and machinery, equipmerd, tools and accessorias, moukds, miscallaneous fixed assets ofc., save & excopt stocks
mmdmwmwmﬁmmmm(mmmmmmmmﬁmmw
SIDBI on or after 01.04.2011). m)wmemmmwmwmmwmydeqmm
inammmSIDBIdwhmmla,.hm&mﬂ&mmemondﬂ'nebonmersituatedat
VPO Dabra, Distt, Hissar, admeasuring about 34 kanal 14 martas owned by the company.

Tarm loans from fnancial mﬁnﬂion‘i.e.. Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) are further covered by
immmwmgmmdmmmrdmdmmwsn Gopal Krishan
chta.Sh.Ammg&mandSh.T.N.GoelwbySh.M.LKm.ptmmerdﬂ\aourpany.
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Other long-term borrowings from banks:
Other long-tefm bomowings from benks .are secured by hypothecation (marked with Registering Authority, Motor
Vehicles) of vehicles acquired out of proceeds of the said borowings from banks.

Terms of repayment:
Term loan from bank: i )
{i} Term loan of T 1168800(¢- is repayable in 28 quarterly instalments of T 418000/~ each with eflect from March 2009.

In¥
Yoarwise repayment schedule 2015-2016
Term loans from bank 361938

Tarm loans from financial institution: l

(i} Term loan of ¥ 29300000/ is repayable in 66 monlhly instaiments commencing 18 months after the date of first
disbursoment i.a., 02.08.2011. The first 18 instalments of T 300000/- each, next 18 instalments of T 400000/~ sach, naxt
18 instaiments of T 510000/- each, next 11 instalments of T 525000/- cach and the last final instatment of T 8450004-,

(i) Term loan of ¥ 1700000V- is repayable in 88 monthly instaimenis commencing 18 months after the date of first
Msbursement i.e.. 02.08.2011.. The first 18 instatments of 215000/~ aach, next 18 instaiments_of T.25000/- each,.next 18
-stalments of ¥ 30000/~ each, next 11 instalments of T 35000/- each and the tast finel instalment of T-55000/-.

: Int
sarwise npaymom 2015-2016 2016-2017  2017-2018  2018-201%
hedule
am  loans from 9330000 6480000 7440000 2680000
yancial institution

ther long-term horrowings from banks:- - B e T

t Other long-term borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited amointing to ¥ 15(1)0001 ls repayable in 36 equated monl:my
staliments (EM!s) of T 48585/- (including interest).

)Otherbng-tennbonwtghumHDFCBatﬂ(Lhutademmmﬂngto?m brepayableinSBeqtmsdnmmly
staliments (EMIs) of T 256004- (including interast).

In¥T
oarwise repayment 2015-2016 2016-2017 - 2017-2018 .
shedule {principal) .
ther long term T75724 647491 48170
arowings from banks
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. in
As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
6. Shart-tarm borrowings
Secured (™) o,
Loan repayable on demand from bank (cash credit) 5864557 4422122
Total 5864557 . 4422122

(™) Nature of security and guarantes by directors or others:
Loanmarabhmdentarﬂfmmbank(mhaudil}issmadbyhypoﬂmuﬁono(stwksafmwmteﬁal_wm-h-
progress, finished goods, stores and spares and hypothecation of entire recetvables/ book debts.

Tha said facifities from Punjab National Bank are further securad by hypothecation of block assets of the company and
first charge ranking paripassu with Small Industries Development Bank of Indla {SIDBI) by way of equitable mortgage of
aﬂlheimmaueproperﬁmi.a..land&buildingthateondlhewmanysituatedmVPODabra.Disu.Hisw,
adn'aasuringabm‘lykmsl14martasownedbyﬂmwny.Thmesmﬁhsamabohddssmmyfww-tum
borrowings (refer note no. 5 "Long-temm bomowings').

Loan repayabloondemandmnbmk(mshaudit)hammmp«smmgmdmmdimd
the company namety Sh, Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta and Sh. T.N. Goel and by Sh, M.L. Kansal, promoter

of the company .

in?
As at Ay mt
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
. Trade payables
Micro, smafl and medium enterprises (™) - -
Others 3890487 IBE01T1
Total 3890487 3660171

{"")meeorrpanyhasnolmwivodﬂmrmpiadhfmna!hnfmmibs@bmrag&dimlheirstﬂmundormamuo,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008. Henca discasures, if any, retating to amounts unpaid as al the
yaaremlnqeﬂ'lu'withintorastpaidfpayableumquﬁadmderﬂwsaidAdhavanotboennmde.

. Other cusrent llabllities

Cument maturities of long-term borrowings 8467662 697586
Interest accruad but not due on borowings 174009 208966
Other pavables

- Advancas from customers 56133 509226

- Creditors againsi capital goods 163850 967539

- Accroad employee benefits expense . 288686 234258

- Statutory dues 27109 66325

- Other Rabilities 3086905 3920784 2596954 4374342
Total . 10562455 11580894
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
In®
Asat As ut .
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
1D. Deferred tax assets {net) - :
Dd:nrndtu'm
Depraciation on fixed mssets 3235187 1045974
Defacred tax sssets (net) 3235187 1045974
11. Long-term loans and advances
{unsacurad, considaned good)
Capital advances . 2550817 -
Security deposits . 2022589 1590748
Prepeid expenses ' 53038 80909
Total 7132244 1871657
L ¥ 3 Otlnrmntm_ -
(unsecured, considerad good)
Non-current bank balances - term deposits having mors than 12 1857500 1857500
months mabxity at the year and (term deposit receipts pledgad -
with banks towarnds margin against bank guaranises)
Intaresi accrued on term deposits with bank 783338 _ 585368
Advancs to gretulty trust 204138 302741
Total 2844374 2745608
13, inventorias
* (Refer nota no. 2 (h) for mode of valustion) .
Row matecat 14284718 17761817
Work-in-progress 2638052 1337680
Finished goods 13825332 15312876
Stores and spares, mmmm 3781532 3516188
‘Pncluding in transit - T 1889504 {previous yosr - nil)]
Salenbie waste 213180 591678
Tota! 34743714 33320048
14. Trade recaivables
(mod.ounidurndgood)
Outstanding for a period excesding six months from- the date 2429 -
Mhﬂm&.hw
mw-p«ummmmmmm 8301753 7263899
_Mmmbwm
" Total 6311182 7283299
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b

. inT
As at As at
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
15. Cash and cash equivalents '
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 32447 22179
- in {erm deposit accounts - 3775000
- in term deposit accounts (held as margin money against letter of credit) 12900000 .
- in term deposit accounts (held as margin money against bank guarantees) 1857500 1857500
Cashonhand . 134470 226738
f
| “anatn 004
Less: Term deposit accounts having more than 12 months 1857500 1857500
= maturity at the year end (disclosed under note no. 12)
Total 13066917 4223534
Of the above, the balances that meet the definition of cash and 166917 4223534
cash equivalents as per Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 ‘Cash
Flow Statement’ is:
16. Short+term loans and advances
(unsacured, considerad good)
Advance income tax {nel of provision for income tax) 197919 244336
Advances to suppliers of goods and services - 77029
Taxes and duties recoverable/refundable 13458 546416
Other loans and advances 5033 20
Prepaid expenses 161499 147793
Total 3749 1016594
17. Other current assets
{unsecured, considered good)
Interest subsidy receivable 1103588 1870320
Interest accrued on security deposits and fixed deposits 531485 114233
Expoct benefits receivable - : 61656 -
Insurance claim receivable - 183500
Tangible fixed assets held for sale 4513 4513
Total 1701252 2182566
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
in¥
‘Forthe For the
yeoar endsd year ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
18. Ravenus from operations’
Sale of products
Maratacturad goods Z36858303 205328874
236858303 209328874
Othwr operating revenues
~ Sale of wasts 2245728 1460409
Sale of scrzp - 50500 82097
Export benefits 61658 -
2157382 T 1542490
Totnd 239216185 210874370
. Detaily of sals of manutactured goods under becad heads
Cation blanded yam 236858303 209328574
0
ﬂlpthrhm
 intocesi tncome 1029328 e
“Net gain on foreign curency transactions and transiation 54700 -
insurance cizim received 170503 163500
hiscellanecus income 84d 44854
Totad 126377 765698
20. Cost of materials consumed
Cost of fiat I
Opening stock of aw materiels 17761617 12277263
Add: purchase of raw materials 153829507 135172408
171591524 147445669
Less:
Sale of row matorials 172502 111720
Closing stock of raw matarials 14204718 17761817
Cost of materials consumed - Total 157134214 12957832
Detalls of raw matarial consumed under brosd heads: )
Textie waste/ Cotton wasts ' . 107322044 85059593
49811270 44516739
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. in¥
For the For the
year endad year ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
21. (-) Increase/ dacreasas in inventories
Closing inventories '
Finishex! goods 13825332 ~ 15312878
Saleable waste 213180 591678
Work-in-progress 2638952 1337689
16677464 » 17242243
Opening inventories
Finished goods 156312876 16442754
Saleable waste 581678 159275
Work-n-progress 1337689 6730632
- 17242243 23342661
{-) Increase! decreass In Inventorles - Total 564779 6100418
Details of inventories of finished goods under broad heads )
Closing inventocies
Cotton blended yam 13825332 15312876
Opening inventories
Cotton blended yam 15312876 16442754
Details of inventories of work-in-progress under broad heads . - -
Closing inventories i
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress 2638952 1337689
Opening inventories .
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress 1337689 6730632
22. Empiloyes benafits axpense
Salaries, wages and bonus 2717553 2151884
Contribution 1o providet fund and other funds 568245 . 181374
Staff welfarm expenses . 1495 T3
Total 3075293 2341031
23. Financa costs -, o
Interest expense 2504313 . 3403966
Other borrowing costs 327185 C o 34419
Total 2831478 3438385
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F HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED LN -t A
.. _ In¥
- i For the For the
o year ended year snded
31.02.2015 31,03.2014
24. Depreciation ' ’ ’
Depraciation on tangible assets {refer note no. 9) 13453257 11064609
’ Total 13453257 ° 11064609
. )
25. Other expensas
Consumption of stores and apare parts 7877168 66885841
Packing material consumed - 2179329 _ 1900224
f Diesel consurmed 4845544 2882161
Power and fuel 33508860 . 20417825
. Contract tabour charges and expenses 1266563 1074709
Repair and maintenance
1 - Machinery ' ' 868750 \ . T46248
- Bullding , - 180011
Insuranca charges 373887 292218
Feas and subscription . 251954, 146180
l - Audit feas 112360 87079
l - Tax audlt fees o 22472 14045
- Cartification fees . 33708 28090
Logal end professional charges 213810 95296
Net loss on foreign cumency transactions and transtation - 12684
i Freight and cartage outward 68453 ’ 332697
Clearing and forwanding charges (export) T ) 352218 -
Rebste and discount 1725 1130
Miscellaneous expenses T 1239750 ' 756143
Total 5318481 _ 45456598
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED - . di
in¥

For the For the
year ended year ended

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

26. Earnings per equity share {EPS)
The calculation of EPS as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss has been made in accordance with Accounling
Standard (AS}-20 'Eaming Per Share’ notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

A statoment on catculation of EPS is as under:

Profit for the period.attributabie to equity shareholders 7886761 11972670
Total {a) 7886761 11972670
Number of equity shares outstanding during the year (nos.) 3735000 3735000
{Nominal value of equity share - ¥ 10/-)

Total (b} 3735000 . 3735000 *
Basic EPS (T) (a/b) 2.1 321
Diluted EPS (T} (ah) 21 a2

Note: There are no potential aquity shares

271. Contingent liabilitles and commitments :
(to the extent not provided for)
{a) Contingent liabilities;
{i) Counter guarantees issued to Punjab National Bank in respect 1857500 1857500
of the guarantees issued by the said bank in favour of variou
government authorities. .

(b} Commitments:

{i) Performance bonds executed in favour of The President of 27673308 ; 27673306
India against exports obligations for purchase of capilal goods

under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) schema

(i} Estimated amount of.unexecuted capital contracts {net of 38045756 -
advances)




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED St

28. Employee benefits .
Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard (AS) - 15 ‘Employee benefits’ are as under:
(a) General description of plan: Defined gratuity benefit obligation (funded)
{b) Method of valuation of gratuity: Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method.

inT

[Particulars [ 2014-2015 | 2013-2014 |
(c) Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of defined benefit obligation:
1. |Present value of obligation as at the baginning of the period 437889 423164
2. |Current service cost 95271 63881
2| 3 linterest cost . 35031 agoss
4. |Net actuarial {-) gain/ loss on obligations 34956 -B7241
5. |Benefiis paid -18269 -
6. |Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 586878 437889
(d) Fair value of plan assets: ;
1. |Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the pariod 740830 6880897
2. |Expected returm on plan assets 66653 59579
3. |Contributions - 154
4, |Benefits paid -18269 -
5. |Actuarial gain/ (-] loss on plan assais - -
6. |Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 791014 740630
(e) Amount recognised In the balance sheeat:
1. [Present value of obligation as at the end of the perlod B 586878 437889
2. |Fair value of plan assets at the_ end of the pedod 791014 740630
3. JAmount recognised in the balance sheet - asset 204138 302741
() Expenses recognised during the parod:
1. [Current servica cosl 85271| 83881
2. |Interest cost 35031 38085
3. |Expected return on plan assets -66653 -59579
4. |Net actuarial {-) gainJ/ loss recognised in the period 34956 -87241
5. |Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 98605 -44854
(g) Actuarial {-) gain/ loss on planned asseots
1. [Actual return on plan assels 66653 59579
2. |Expected return on plan assets 86653 59579
3. |Actuarial (-) gain/ loss on planned assels o 0
(h) Actuarial (-) gain/ loss recognised
1. |Net actuarial {-} gain/ loss on obligations 34956 -87241
2. |Actuarial (-} gain/ loss on planned assets 0 0
3. |Total actuaral (-) gain/ loss 34958 -8§7241
4. |Actuaral {-) gain/ loss recognised 34558 -87241
(i) Actuartal assumptions: .
1. |Discounl rate (per annumj) 8.00% 9.00%
2. [Salary growth rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
3. |Mortality IALM 2006-08[1ALM 2008-
' . Ultimate 08 Ultimate
4. |Expected rate of relurn {per annum} 9.00% 8.75%
8. |wWithdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%
6. |Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
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Note: The abave information is cerlified by the actuary and relied upon by

statutory auditors.
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29. Related parties disclosures .
(a) The name of the transacting related party and description of the relationship between the parties:

Key management personnsl:
Mr. Gopal Krishan Gupta
Mr. Anurag Gupta

Enterprises over which key management personnel or relative of such personnel is able to
exercise significant influence:

Usha Yarns Limited

(b) Related party transactions:

in¥
Sr. |Description of the nature of 2014-2015 ~2013-2014
No. [transactions Key Enterprises over|Key . |Enterprises over
management |which there is|management [which there is
personnel significant personnel significant
influence : influence
1. IRemuneration ) 360000 - 360000 -
2. [Repayment of loans- - - 2885000 -
3. |Purchase of raw matenal - 1724457 - 21429
(including duties and taxes) T
4. |Sale. of raw material - 515198 - 111720
' (including duties and taxes)
(c) Details of material related party transactions included in (b) above:
in¥
Sr. |Description of the nature of, 2014-2015 2013-2014
No. |transactions Key . Enterprises over|Key Enterprises over
- management [which there isimanagement [which there is
personnel significant . |personnel significant
influence influence -
1. |Remuneration )
Mr. Anurag Gupta 360000 - 360000 Co-
2. |Repayment of loans ' -+
Mr. Gopal Krishan Gupta - - 2885000
3. |Purchase of raw material ‘
(including duties and taxes)
Usha Yams Limited - 1724457 - 21429
4. |Sale of raw material
(including duties and taxes)
Usha Yamns Limited - . 515198 =L _ 111720
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30, No amount of dividend hes been proposed to be distributed to equity and r:reference shareholders for the perncn,

31. There is no impaiment of assats during the year.

32. Expenditura in foreign cumency during the financial year on account:

(In )
Particulars For the For the
yoar ended year ended
31.03.2015 31,02.2014
Commission on sales 50921 -
Capital advances 5050617 ' -
Total 5101538 -

33. Total value of all imported raw materials, stores and spares consumed during the financial year and the total value of all
indigenous raw materials and stores and spares similarly consumed and the percantage of each to the total
consu:_rmion:

. in®
For the For the
year snded . yoar anded
31.03.2015 ’ 31.03.2014
| Amount | % [~ Amount | % |
{i) Raw malerials

- Imported i . . . -

- Indigenous 157134214 100% 129576332 100%
Total 157134214 100% 129576332 100%
{ii} Stores and spares

- imported - - 32063 0.48%

- Indiganous 76877168 100% 8657778 99.52%
Total 7677168 100% 66895841 100%

4. Eamings in foreign exchange:
Export of goods calculatéd on F.O.B. basis:
in®
For the For the
yoar ended year snded
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Manufactured goods 2650009 1966034
Total 2650999 1966034

35. The previous period fligures have been regroupedlmdaslﬂed.wherevernecessarytocoMMnlomewnentperbd
prasentation.

As per our attached report of even dale
~, for JAIN & ANIL SOOD

Charterad Accountants for and on behatt of the Board
Firm Registration No. 010505N

Place: Hisar {RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (T.N. GOEL)
Date : 30.05.2015 Partnar Managing Director Director
Mambership No. 088447 DIN: 00162985 OIN: 00183103
(SHARAD GOEL) (TANYU SHARMA) {ANURAG GLUPTA)
Chief Financial Cfficer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00192888
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